RESIDENT NOTICE

City of Novato — February 27, 2012 Marin Valley Mobile Country Club Quarterly Meeting

On February 27" the Novato City Council will hold a regular Council meeting regarding operations of the
Marin Valley Mobile Country Club. This is a regular quarterly meeting for the Park, however there are
several agenda items that may be of particular interest to MVMCC residents.

Draft Delegation Agreement and Management Agreement -- The first is the proposed negotiated draft

of the Delegation Agreement and Management Agreement. The Delegation Agreement is a formal
contract between the PAC and the City (formerly with the Novato Financing Authority) that outlines
each body’s roles and responsibilities. The Management Agreement is the formal contract between the
PAC and Frei Real Estate Services that lays out roles, responsibilities, and expectations for the MVMCC's
property management company. A committee comprised of two PAC Board Members and two City staff
have met over the past year and created a negotiated draft document for review and comment with
residents. The draft document is ready for public review and is attached with a staff report to the
February 27" Council agenda packet. A red-lined version of both the Delegation Agreement and
Management Agreement are included for review and discussion.

Property Condition Report -- The second major item on the agenda for the February 27" meeting is a

status update on the Property Condition Report (also known as the 10-year Physical Needs Report) with
the key findings on the state of the Park’s infrastructure. As required by the existing Delegation
Agreement, this report assesses the conditions of the MVMCC’s water, sewer, electricity, and other
systems, and makes recommendations for capital improvements over the next decade. The final
consultant reports are still being completed, but the key findings and initial costs are included in the
staff report for beginning discussions.

The meeting will be held on Monday, February 27 beginning at 6:30 p.m. in the MVMCC Clubhouse at
100 Marin Valley Drive.

A full copy of the Council’s agenda packet is available at
http://www.ci.novato.ca.us/Index.aspx?page=1637 or it will also be posted on the MVMCC Park web

site at http://mvmcc.com. A hard copy is also available at the MVMCC Clubhouse.

Questions can be emailed to MVMCC@novato.org
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CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
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100 MARIN VALLEY DRIVE

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 27, 2012
6:30 PM
(DISCUSS ITEMS RELATED TO
MARIN VALLEY MOBILE COUNTRY CLUB)

AGENDA

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS

City Manager
Michael S. Frank

D. CONSENT CALENDAR

ADOPT MINUTES OF OCTOBER 28, 2011

BUCKET ANALYSIS FOR PERIODS ENDING October 31,
2011, November 30, 2011, December 31, 2011 and
January 31, 2012

E. GENERAL BUSINESS

7:00 P.M.
3.

cc022712_MVMCC

(Time is approximate.)

PROPERTY CONDITION REPORT STATUS UPDATE AND
KEY FINDINGS

Consider Approving the Property Condition Report

Recommendation: Approve the Property Condition
Report Status Update and Key Findings and direct staff,
PAC and Frei Real Estate to incorporate into a 5-Year
Capital Improvement Budget.
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7:30 P.M. (Time is approximate.)

4. PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT ON THE NEGOTIATED DRAFT
DELEGATION AGREEMENT AND MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT.
PROVIDE DIRECTION ON AGREEMENTS TO RETURN ON MARCH 12
FOR APPROVAL, OR IF NO SIGNIFICANT CONCERNS EXPRESSED OR
DIRECTIONS NECESSARY, APPROVE THE NEGOTIATED DOCUMENTS

Consider Approving the Delegation Agreement.

Recommendation: Approve the Delegation Agreement.

8:30 P.M. (Time is approximate.)
5. RECEIPT OF FINANCIAL AUDIT FY 10/11

Consider Receiving the Financial Audit FY 10/11

Recommendation: Receive the Financial Audit FY 10/11.

8:45 P.M. (Time is approximate.)
6. FY 11/12 MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW

Consider receiving the Mid-Year Budget Review and approving the FY 11/12
Mid-Year Budget.

Recommendation: Receive review and approve the FY 11/12 Mid-Year
Budget.

9:15 P.M. (Time is approximate.)
7. MVMCC: MARIN ENERGY AUTHORITY (MEA) UPDATE

Consider receiving the Marin Energy Authority Update

Recommendation: Receive the informational update on Marin Energy
Authority and upcoming opportunity for Marin Clean Energy.

cc022712_MVMCC



City of Novato

City Council MVMCC Special Meeting
February 27, 2012

Page 3

F. REGULAR REPORTS
8. PARK MANAGEMENT UPDATE: AL FREI
9. UPDATE FROM PAC: MICHAEL HOLLAND
G. BOARD/STAFF COMMENTS
Councilmember reports on conferences and meetings, as needed (3 minutes

maximum per Councilmember report).

H. ADJOURNMENT

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

I, Sheri Hartz, certify that on February 15, 2012, | caused to be posted the
agenda of the February 27, 2012 meeting of the City Council of the City of
Novato, California, on the City Community Service Board in the Police
Department and on the City’'s website at www.cityofnovato.org. In
addition, a copy of the agenda and packet was delivered to the MVMCC
Clubhouse for resident review and emailed to the PAC Webmaster for
posting on the MVMCC web site.

[Sheri Hartz/
Sheri Hartz, City Clerk

cc022712_MVMCC



MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MARIN VALLEY MOBILE COUNTRY CLUB
100 MARIN VALLEY DRIVE
FRIDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2011 - 9:00 AM

A. CALL TO ORDER — 9:07 a.m.
ROLL CALL

Mayor Kellner

Mayor Pro Tem Athas

Councilmember Eklund

Councilmember MacLeamy

Absent: Councilmember Dillon-Knutson

Also Present: Assistant City Manager Cathy Capriola, Finance Manager Brian Cochran,
Assistant City Attorney Veronica Nebb and City Clerk Sheri Hartz.

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA

Councilmember Eklund moved, Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Athas, to approve the Final
Agenda. The motion carried. Mayor Kellner, Mayor Pro Tem Athas, Councilmember Eklund,
and Councilmember MacLeamy voted yes. Councilmember Dillon-Knutson was absent.

C. PUBLIC COMMENT
1. Owen Haxton, speaking for himself, as he is no longer an officer
2. Eileen Cedron, stated she was sorry Councilmember Dillon-Knutson was not
present, as she wanted to thank for her efforts on behalf of seniors. She referred to
a citizen flyer regarding agenda not being prepared by Council but by staff and
said that she hoped that was not true. She concluded by stating that silent park
vehicles cannot be heard by residents and that accident prevention should be

studied.

3. Mike Read, referred to an IJ article read which stated that tenants should own the
park and urged citizens to write to the Council.

4. David Harrington, commented that he had sent Councilmembers MacLeamy and

Athas an email asking to meet with him on issues of concern and that he
appreciated their accessibility.

D. CONSENT CALENDAR
D-1  Draft Minutes from June 6, 2011 meeting

CCl111028
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E. REGULAR CALENDAR

E-1

E-2

CC111028
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2.92% Consumer Price Index Percentage Change for Calendar Year 2011,
No Impact due to Prior Council Decision for No Rent Increase for 2012.

Assistant City Manager Capriola gave the staff report, stating that the PAC had
requested no rent increase, and that was agreed to in the budget. She said that if
that action had not been taken, the rent would have been increased for 2012.
She reminded the public that Assured Guaranty would expect to se¢ an increase
next time.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

1. Owen Haxton, stated that he appreciated no increase. He requested that
staff insure that, if there is an increase next year, it would from the current
CPI, not from the first time there was no increase.

2. Mike Holland, thanked staff for helping impress on Assured Guaranty that
a rent increase was unnecessary. He stated that Assured Guaranty’s
primary concern is themselves and that they have strong-armed residents
out of $200,000 for the changeover from NFA to Council, which will
come out of the Park's budget. He said that the reason for the expected
rent increase is to accumulate money for senior bonds and that the PAC
thinks rent increases should be based on what the operating expenses are.

Status Update on Property Condition Survey for MVMCC (Verbal Report)

Assistant City Manager Capriola provided the update, stating that the
management agreement requires a physical needs reserve amalysis (property
condition report) every 10 years. She said this should have happened in 2007 but
did not, so it needs to go forward now. She stated that they must assure that park
infrastructure is being maintained. She reported that water, sewer, gas, electric
and storm drain would be reviewed, but that an RFP put out for an engineering
consultant received no responses. Therefore, she stated that the City’s Public
Works Department would do the review, contracting some segments out to small
firms. She anticipated meeting Assured Guaranty’s deadline and stated that the
various reports prepared will provide the Council and residents with good
information that will be reported back in January or February.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

1. Jim Hirais, asked what the cost would be and if the residents would pay.
He also stated that sewer costs have doubled in last few years and said that
garbage service should come back to our community. Ms. Capriola stated
that costs of $75,000 were included in the capital budget and did come
from park funds. Assistant City Attorney Nebb stated that regarding
connecting to Novato Sanitary, the report can speak to how it might work,




but the‘ Park is within the boundary of Las Gallinas Sanitary and to
change, an application would have to be filed with LAFCO.

Councilmember MacLeamy asked how the costs would be borne if the report reveals that
improvements are needed, to which Ms. Capriola responded that the report will breakdown short
and long term priorities which will be analyzed and planned for. She said that the information
could be used to develop a 5 year capital plan, which would then be funded with park proceeds,
and that once the report is complete, how to address the issues will be discussed.

Councilmember Eklund stated that she was glad infrastructure is being addressed and that the
study should look at what the physical costs would be related to sewage and garbage/recycling
services since Novato Sanitary has upgraded its equipment and pumping costs may be lower.
She said that the Park does not get the curbside recycling services that Novato areas get, if they
did, rates could be reduced.

E-3

E-4
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PUBLIC COMMENT:

1. Mike Holland, stated that Marin Sanitary does offer pretty extensive
recycling, yard waste and compost.

2. Owen Haxton, stated that sewage system in Hamilton did not have

capacity for park to connect.

MVMCC in City’s Wide Area Rapid Notification Phone System for
Emergency Communications and Notice (Verbal Report)

Ms. Capriola provided an update on recent conversations regarding the
notification system for use during situations where communication with all
residents at once is needed. She stated that the City has a wide area notification
systéem which can be used in case of emergency and that the Police Department
had created a Marin Valley notification list, which could be used for
communication in critical health emergency circumstances.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

1. Jim Hirais, stated that they are also creating a system within the Park and
want to develop their own notification method for non-safety matters.

Update on Negotiations of Delegation Agreement and Management Agreement
(Verbal Report)

Ms. Capriola gave an update on the Delegation Agreement, stating that it has been
delayed and that staff resources were consumed by the Governor's actions
regarding redevelopment. She recommended extending the agreement for three
more months through the end of March 2012 and explained what actions had been
taken so far. She said that conversations would be had with the PAC in
November, after which it would be reviewed with Assured Guaranty and that in




“late January/early February, a resident meeting for review and input would be

held before it finally went to Council. She said that a schedule for those meetings
would be set up once the new Council is seated.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

1. Owen Haxton, stated that a requirement of the governing documents 1s
that the Park be managed in such a way that the burden on local
government is lessened. He said that considering performance under the
delegation agreement over the past years, this project has not created
problems,that the financial record is exemplary and there are good
relations with the management team. He concluded by stating that “we can
take care of ourselves”.

2. Mike Holland, inquired as to when the PAC should approve the extension,
to which Ms. Nebb replied that it should occur at the next meeting, prior to
November 29, 2011.

F. GENERAL BUSINESS

F-1

Bucket Analysis for Period Ending September 30, 2011 (Staff Report)

Ms. Capriola welcomed and introduced new Finance Manager Brian Cochran and turned
the presentation over to him. He stated that it had been five months since the last report
which is meant to be a cash tracking tool for the Park. He stated that it looks through
accounts, and shows what was spent, what was budgeted, what the balance is, and
calculates what needs to be added to the senior cash trap account. He said that the current
balance is $1.7 million.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

1.
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Mike Holland, inquired whether the next sweep will occur in October of 2017.
Ms. Capriola stated that she would need to check and that the money could be
used for infrastructure improvements but was meant to be for emergencies.

Owen Haxton, stated that he had received the email message but that the bucket

analysis was not attached. He inquired whether staff could include amount that is
presently being held in the GIC account in Germany so residents can see the
balance, which gets better interest than US Bank. Mr. Cochran stated that there is
about $3.6 million among three accounts which is earning 6.4% on cash trap,
6.8% on reserve and 6.8% on capital. He said that this information can be added
to report, along with the debt service ratio information.



Park Management Update: Al Frei

Al Frei reported on projects being undertaken. He stated that a seismic retrofit
was being done on the clubhouse east wall, that engineering plans have been
received and have gone out to bid. He anticipated completion by year end, with

the rest of the building to be done in phases.

He reported that the asphalt work was being done on a seven year cycle to cul-de-
sacs, some roadways and parking in front of the clubhouse.

He reported on a recent utility billing event, where 84 residents experienced high
rates unexpectedly and it was thought there had been an error. He provided
background on how utility billing works at the Park stating that a billing service is
used as it would be too complicated for the Park to do itself due to strict PUC
regulations. He explained how the meter reading was done and all the levels of
control that are in place to avoid errors in billing. At length, he stated that an
analysis had been done looking for abnormalities and to explain the high usage
but that no wrong readings or malfunctions-had been found. He concluded by
stating that the irregularity was likely attributable to temperatures during the
billing cycle which were unusually low and that they would continue to follow
best practices with three levels of safeguarding.

Councilmember Eklund asked about net metering and whether rates tiered like PG&E’s are, to
which Mr. Frei responded that the rates were based in usage. To a question about the age of the
meters, he replied that 10% of meters are traded out each year to get recalibrated or replaced on a
regular cycle, and that there are no Smart Meters at the Park.

Councilmember Eklund also asked how we will handle the Park joining MEA and whether it will
be an individual resident’s decision. Ms. Nebb responded that to opt in or opt out is a single
decision for the entire park, and that it has not yet been discussed whether PAC would want
residents to vote on the matter. She also stated that the CPUC will be deciding on whether
mobile home parks will continue to be master-metered or individually metered in the future and,
if it decides to go toward individual metering, individual residents would have opt in/out rights.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

1.

2.
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Mike Holland, inquired whether, if the Park does nothing, would they be opted-in,
to which Ms. Nebb responded that they would.

Valerie Barbour, president of HOL, stated that HOL will monitor the CPUC
decision and would report back.

Anneela Manning, asked whether, since there are 84 homes in the Park which are
apparently very cold, there is any City program or retrofitting that can help
residents fight the cold. Councilmember Eklund encouraged them to call PG&E
who will do free audit to help reduce energy costs.

Jim Hirais, commented that electricity is purchased wholesale but residents get
charged retail. He also stated that the Park gets paid back for single metering and




those funds should be returned to the residents. Regarding the east wall, he stated
that he would like to be able to close off light.

5. Fileen Cedron, refuted Mr. Frei's statement, and stated that the handheld reader
failed, which she has documented. She contended that the explanation doesn't
add up since only 84 out of 300 registered the higher usage.

In response to Mr. Hirais, Mr. Frei stated that, in master metered parks, residents are billed at
residential rate and the Park is billed at a lower rate which is determined by the CPUC. He said
that the revenue collected is higher than expenses since the Park maintains its own repairs.
He respohded to Ms. Cedron that, while he concurred that there was a handheld issue, the meters
were manually re-read when the problem was discovered.

Mr. Frei also reported on a recent incident with a gas shutoff that lasted for three days and stated
that, due to this incident, the vendor was changed to Jarsko. He said that the current vendor,
Park Utilities, had offered a discount on an upgrade that is needed as an enticement to not change
vendors, but a decision has not been made whether to proceed with that.

He concluded his report by describing recent communication enhancements, such as a resident
email contact list to use for quick information blurbs. He encouraged everyone to be added to
the list which he said will not be given out. He also stated that meetings will be held bi-monthly
or quarterly with residents on specific issues, the next meeting being on November 13th.

Councilmember Eklund asked whether Ms. Cedron’s meter had been changed, but Mr. Frei did
not know. She also asked whether master metering is advantageous and wondered whether we
should be advocating for it with the CPUC? Mr. Frei responded that it is unknown what the costs
would be, and that it would be financial benefit to go through the utility rather than self-manage.
He stated however that the cost to convert could be about $750,000, and would be passed on to
residents.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

1. Mike (last name indistinguishable), spoke regarding a trash dump near Hamilton
Woods, stating that it affected the quality of life of those nearby, and asked
whether someone could approach them to clean up the mess. Mayor Kellner
responded that code enforcement would be notified.

2, Jim Hirais, regarding rate overage, stated that it doesn't help a low income

person's bottom line. Regarding handheld device, he inquired how many times it

had been broken. Mayor Kellner suggested he have a conversation on these
issues with Mr. Frei.

Rick Oltman, thanked management for its service.

4. Mike Holland, stated that, regarding the trash problem, it had been handled before
by the City and the process works.

L8]
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F-3  PAC Update: Michael Holland

Mr. Holland gave his report, commenting on a revision needed in the draft
minutes. He stated that in his comment about the budget, the phrases “nice to
have” vs. “need to have” were reversed. He reported that the website had fallen
into disuse, but that a new web administrator Anila Manning was going to update
the site, making it relevant, timely and useful.

He stated that the title transfer, resident ownership/self-management issue is still
out there, and that public and meetings with Councilmembers have been held. He
said the PAC would like to see the topic agendized starting after first of year so
open discussions can take place in public.

He also stated that there are many questions related to the refinancing issue such
as whether they will either continue to pay Assured Guaranty $150,000 or do
something else and that they are feeling pressure that in twelve months, this will
come up and we need to have a process in place.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

1. Rick Oltman, stated that, regarding refinancing, the City may run out the clock,
and that if we do refinance the bonds, we lose ability of PAC to weigh in on the
transfer. He said that he would like City to transfer responsibility of Park
finances to taxpayers since it is referred to as a City asset. He asked why the 400
residents bear the sole burden to support this one, stated that reduced rents would
help and wondered if it is fair that they continue to pay the full cost of the asset.

G. BOARD/STAFF COMMENTS

G-l:  Determine next meeting dates for Delegation Agreement Negotiations
Regular meetings — January 2012 / May 2012 / October 2012

Ms. Capriola stated that these are general timelines but won’t be confirmed until the new
Council is seated. She said that on the delegation agreement, the City will be talking with
Assured Guaranty in early 2012 and it will be on the January agenda. She said that there
were sign-up sheets available if people are interested in being notified, and it would also
be announced in the Our Town newsletter.

Ms. Nebb stated that, if Council has no objection, the minutes can be corrected as
requested and the Council agreed.

Councilmember 'MacLeamy discussed the second-tier list and its function and how items
are pulled off the list to be added to Council agenda. She stated that considering alternate
forms of ownership will be agendized after first of year.

CC111028
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PUBLIC COMMENT:

1. Jim Hirais, stated that he emphasizes communication and civility and
congratulated everyone.
2. Patrick Quigley, announced an upcoming Halloween party and invited

Council to attend.

H. ADJOURNMENT 11:03 a.m.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly and regularly adopted at a regular
meeting of the Novato City Council.

Sheri Hartz
Sheri Hartz, City Clerk

CC111028
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MEMORANDUM

THE CITY OF

NOVATO

February 27, 2012 CALIFORNIA

TO: City Council 75 Rowland Way #200
Novato, CA 94945-3232
(415) 899-8900
FAX (415) 899-8213

WWW.CLRovValo.ca. us

FROM: Brian Cochran, Finance Manager

‘SUBJECT: Bucket Analysis for the Periods Ending October 31, 2011

through January 31, 2012

Attached are copies of the monthly Bucket Analysis Reports for the periods ending
October 30, 2011 through January 31, 2012. According to the January 31, 2012 analysis,
the Cash Trap balances are as follows
Senior Cash Trap balance $ 1,714,562

The purpose of this analysis is to determine available amounts in the cash trap fund.

The analysis is used to determine how much of the actual funds are needed to fund
each bucket. The remaining funds are distributed to each cash trap.

The outstanding bond debt as of January 31, 2012 is as follows:

Senior Revenue Bonds Outstanding $ 10,090,000

At the October 2011 meeting, some members of the public and the Council expressed
interest - in knowing the balances and interest rates on the long-term guaranteed
investment contracts for certain Marin Valley Mobile Country Club funds. Here are the
accounts currently invested in guaranteed investment contracts:

Account Name Balance as of 1/31/2012 Interest Rate
Cash Trap Fund $1,659,907.61 6.46%
Debt Service Reserve $1,000,000.00 6.86%
Float / Capital Fund $1,211,816.40 6.86%
Attachments

Bucket Analysis Reports
-October 31, 2011
-November 30, 2011
-December 31, 2011
-January 31, 2012






D-2
1.

Novato Financing Authority
Marin Valley Mobile Country Club "Bucket” Analysis

Through .............. 1/31/2012
Due To
US Bank Required US Bank {From) Adjusted

Bucket Description No. Balance Balance Cash Trap Balance
No.

Revenue Fund 95436060 0 0 0 0
1 Senior Bond Interest 6061 195,822 195,826 3 195,822
2 Senior Bonds Principal 6062 121,667 121,668 1 121,667
3 Senior Debt Service Reserve 6065 1,000,000 4,000,000 0 1,000,000
4 Utility Account 6077 15,762 76,122 60,359 15,762
5 Replacement Reserve Fund-Capital Plan 6064 890,541 894 323 3,782 890,541
6 Escrow (Insurance) Fund (Reserve costs}) 6063 7,112 22,642 16,530 7112
7.8 Expense Fund 6066 9,100 14,584 5,484 9,100
11 Property Manager Account 6072 0 0 0 0
12 Operating Expenses 6078 87,047 193,667 106,510 B7.047
13 Arbitrage Rebate Account 6068 1,250 1,250 0 1,250
19 In Lieu of Tax-City of Novato 6059 0 0 0 0

Deferred Costs Fund-Consultant Account 6074 0 12 12 0

PAC Expense Account 6075 2,331 3,903 1,672 2,33

Owner's Expense Account 6076 14,583 67,664 53,081 14,583

Subtotal required Balances 2,345,216 246,335
21 Senior Cash Trap 6067 1,851,580 1,659,909 (191,682}

Total Cash Trap Balances 1,659,909 54,653 1,714,562

TOTAL CASH HELD BY TRUSTEE 173172012 4,251,459

Debt as of January 31, 2012

Senior Loan principal outstanding is $ 10,090,000
Suberdinate Loan principal outstanding is $ 0

Senior Cash Trap Balance

1,659,908 Prior month's balance
- Trustee allocation January
54,653 Distribution at 01/31/12

s 13!1-14,562 Balance




Novato Financing Authority
Marin Valley Mobile Country Club "Bucket” Analysis

Through .............. 12/31/2011
Due To
US Bank Required US Bank (From) Adjusted

Bucket Description No. Balance Balance Cash Trap Balance
No.

Revenue Fund 95436060 0 0 0 0
1 Senior Bond Interest 6061 146,867 146,870 3 146,867
2 Senior Bonds Principal 6062 91,250 91,251 1 91,250
3 Senior Debt Service Reserve 6065 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 1,000,000
4 Utility Account 6077 (39,103) 26,613 65,715 {39,103)
5 Replacement Reserve Fund-Capital Plan 6064 902,112 874,226 (27,885) 202,112
6 Escrow (Insurance} Fund (Reserve costs) 6063 6,096 21,626 15,530 6,096
7.8 Expense Fund 6066 7,800 11,984 4,184 7,800
11 Property Manager Account 6072 0 0 0 0
12 Operating Expenses 6078 74,196 180,307 106,111 74,196
13 Arbitrage Rebate Account 6068 625 625 0 625
19 in Lieu of Tax-City of Novato 6059 0 0 0 0

Deferred Costs Fund-Consultant Account 6074 0 12 12 0

PAC Expense Account 6075 1,098 3,570 1,672 1,998

Owner's Expense Account 6076 42,500 65,618 53,018 12,500

Subtotal required Balances 2,204,341 218,261
21 Senior Cash Trap 6067 1,823,579 1,659,909 (163,671)

Total Cash Trap Balances 1,659,909 54,690 . 1,714,499

TOTAL CASH HELD BY TRUSTEE 12/3172011 4,082,511

Debt as of December 31, 2011

Senior Loan principal outstanding is $ 10,090,000
Subordinate Loan principal outstanding is $ 0

Senior Cash Trap Balance

1,669,909 Prior month's balance
- Trustee aliocation December
54,590 Distribution at 12/31/11
(1,714, Balance




Novato Financing Authority
Marin Valley Mobile Country Club "Bucket” Analysis

Through.............. 11/30/2011
Due To
US Bank Required US Bank (From} Adjusted

Bucket Description No. Balance Balance Cash Trap Balance
No.

Revenue Fund 85436060 0 0 0 0
1 Senior Bond Interest 6061 97,911 a7 914 2 87,911
2 Senior Bonds Principal 6062 60,833 60,834 1 60,833
3 Senior Debt Service Reserve 6065 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 1,000,000
4 Utility Account 6077 (33,747 26,613 60_,359 (33,747}
5 Replacement Reserve Fund-Capital Plan 6064 1,068,855 1,043,593 {25,262} 1,068,855
6 Escrow {Insurance) Fund (Reserve costs) 6063 5,080 20,610 15,5630 5,080
7.8 Expense Fund 6066 6,500 11,984 5,484 6,500
11 Property Manager Account 6072 0 0 0 0
12 Operating Expenses 6078 66,989 173,499 106,510 66,989
13 Arbitrage Rebate Account 6068 0 0 0 0
19 In Lieu of Tax-City of Novato 6059 0 0 0 0

Deferred Costs Fund-Consultant Account 6074 0 12 12 0

PAC Expense Account 6075 1,665 3,237 1,672 1,665

Owner's Expense Account 6076 10,417 63,498 53,082 10,417

Subtotal required Balances 2,284,504 217,290
21 "~ Senior Cash Trap 6067 1,822,545 1,659,909 {162,636)

Total Cash Trap Balances 1,659,909 54,654 1,714,562

TOTAL CASH HELD BY TRUSTEE 11/30/2011 4,161,702

Debt as of November 30, 2011

Senior Loan principal outstanding is $ 10,090,000
Subordinate Loan principal outstanding is $ 0

Senior Cash Trap Balance

1,669,908 Prior month's balance
- Trustee allocation November
54,654 Distribution at 11/30/11
w4, 714,562 | Balance .




Novato Financing Authority
Marin Valley Mobile Country Ciub "Bucket” Analysis

Through.............. 10/31/2011
Due To
US Bank Required US Bank {From) Adjusted

Bucket Description No. Balance Balance Cash Trap Balance
No.

Revenue Fund 95436060 0 0 0 0
1 Senior Bond Interest i 6061 48,956 48,958 2 48,956
2 Senior Bonds Principal 6062 30,417 30,417 0] 30,417
3 Senior Debt Service Reserve 8065 1,000,000 4,000,000 0] 1,000,000
4 Utility Account 6077 33,838 94 197 60,359 33,838
5 Replacement Reserve Fund-Capital Plan 6064 1,027,708 987,204 (40,504) 1,027,708
6 Escrow (Insurance) Fund (Reserve costs} 6063 4,064 19,594 15,530 4,064
7.8 Expense Fund 6066 5,200 20,559 15,359 5,200
1 Property Manager Account 6072 0 0 0 0
12 Operating Expenses : 6078 52,709 169,795 117,086 52,709
13 Arbitrage Rebate Account 6068 2,500 10,000 7.500 2,500
19 In Lieu of Tax-City of Novato 6059 ¢ 0 0 V]

Deferred Costs Fund-Consultant Account 6074 0 12 12 0

PAC Expense Account 6075 1,332 2,904 1,572 1,332

Qwner's Expense Account 6076 8,333 61,415 53,082 8,333

Subtotal required Balances 2,215,056 230,000
21 Senior Cash Trap 6067 1,835,254 1,659,909 (175,346}

Total Cash Trap Balances 1,659,909 54 654 1,714,563

TOTAL CASH HELD BY TRUSTEE 10/31/2011 4,104,964

Debt as of October 31, 2011

Senior Loan principal outstanding is $ 10,090,000
Subordinate Loan principal outstanding is $ 0

Senior Cash Trap Balance

1,659,909 Prior month's balance
- Trustee allocation October
54,654 Distribution at 10/31/11

T 1,714'E56_3.'- Balance




DATE: February 27, 2012 T
| E-3 NOVATO

TO: City Council CALIFORNIA
Assured Guaranty 75 Rowland Way #200

Park Acquisition Corporation Novato, CA 94945-3232

Frei Real Estate Services

HE CITY OF

(415) 899-8900
FAX (415) 899-8213

WWW.CLROVGIO.CA. s

FROM: Julian Skinner, PE, Senior Engineer

SUBJECT:  Property Condition Report -- Status Update and Key Findings

SUMMARY

This staff report presents a status update and the key findings of the Property Condition Report
(also referred to as the ‘Physical Needs Report) for the Marin Valley Mobile Country Club
(MVMCC). The Property Condition Report will provide an update on the condition of park
infrastructure. The various consultant reports are still in draft form at the time of this agenda
preparation and will be available at a later date.

DISCUSSION

Below is a summary of the key components of the park infrastructure, and the conditions of each,
based on information gathered during the fourth quarter of 2011. In general the underground
utilities (water, sewer, gas and electrical) are installed in a joint trench running under the coach
units. While the bulk of the underground utilities are at or near the end of their service life based
on age, most of the utilities were found to be in good condition, and are likely capable of
functtoning as intended for the foresceable future.

The only utility identified as needing replacement within the next ten years is the portion of the
water services within Phase I {westerly portion of the park) serving about 151 units. Based on
the age of the secondary electrical system, the report recommends a plan be developed for its
replacement; however, this is not identified as a critical replacement required within the next ten
years. Consideration of replacement of other utilities during the proposed water service
replacement should be considered due to the age of the utilities and the potential long-term cost
savings for implementing a joint utility replacement project, City staff will provide more
analysis of this in the future.

Water System:

MVMCC operates a private system of % inch through 2 inch diameter water distribution pipes
connected to main supply lines owned and operated by the North Marin Water District
(NMWD). Distribution pipes in the Phase I part of the Park are constructed of galvanized iron,
while Phase II pipes are PVC.

1
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In general, the Phase I galvanized pipes were found to be in poor condition, while the Phase II
PVC pipes were in good condition. A replacement plan for the galvanized pipe should be
considered at this time, while the PVC pipe will not likely require replacement in the foresecable
future. The estimated cost of replacement for the Phase I galvanized water pipes is $900,000 to
$1,200,000 depending upon the configuration of replacement pipes, and integration of the same
with the NMWD system. NMWD connection fees are not included in these costs.

Storm Drain System: :

The existing storm drain system is comprised of ditches, gutters, v-ditches and 5,700 lineal feet
of 127-36” diameter storm drains. Overall the storm drain system is in good shape, and no
significant replacement or repairs are required. About ten concrete drainage inlets are in need of
minor repair, and a cleaning program (five year cycle) should be scheduled and maintained for
the storm drain pipes. Cleaning of the drainage ditch from the system outfall to the SMART
tracks should be considered to improve capacity and facilitate an annual cleaning of the same;
however, this work may involve extensive inter-agency coordination to secure permits.

Sanitary Sewer System:

The MVMCC sewer collection system consists of approximately 18,000 lineal feet of 4 inch
through 8 inch asbestos cement gravity sewers, forty-two manholes, two pump stations and two 6
inch diameter force (pressure) mains.

The asbestos sewer pipes are nearing the end their design service life; however, inspection shows
them to be in better condition than would be expected. No replacements are recommended at
this time; however, increased maintenance should be considered to preserve the integrity of the
system, as the pipes age.

The two pump stations are in need of upgrades to function as intended. Upgrades to building
structure, generators and electrical systems are estimated at $200,000 for the two stations. It is
also likely that the two pump stations will require a major/complete overhaul within the next 10-
20 years, at an estimated cost of $1 million.

Electrical System:
The primary electrical system was installed underground in 1968, and upgraded in 1999. The
secondary system was also installed underground in 1968-1970, but has not been upgraded since.

The primary system is functioning adequately and was found to be in good condition. The
secondary system has reached the end of its design service life, but was found to be in good
condition. Although no replacement is required at this time, MVMCC should start planning and
budgeting for the future replacement of this secondary system. The cost for such a replacement
would likely be comparable with that of the water system, but would be dependent upon the
phasing of construction, and if the replacement were combined with replacement of other
utilities.




Gas System:

The gas system was installed in 1968, and consists of a single 5 inch connection to the PG&E
system, and distribution piping from 5 inch through % inch diameter. The condition of the gas
pipes owned by MVMCC was found to be very good, with coated and wrapped pipes, with
adequate cathodic protection from degradation.

No replacements or repairs of the gas system are warranted or proposed at this time.

Stope Stability:

The Geologic and Geotechnical Evaluation identified twenty-seven sites of past or present
geologic or geotechnical interest within or immediately adjacent to the Marin Valley Mobile
Country Club. Each of the sites was evaluated for recent activity and damage potential. The
product of activity and damage potential yields a ‘rating’ for each site on a 1-100 scale. The
rating is a tool to identify priority projects. Of the twenty-seven sites, eighteen were rated at ‘10’
or below, a further three below ‘30°, with the remaining six at or above ‘40°. Cost estimates are
provided for various levéls of remediation for the subject areas, with a total cost for the six sites
ranging from $550,000 to $1.4 million depending upon the repair/mitigation strategy. The site
with the highest rating, a ‘72°, has a cost estimate of $80,000 - $200,000 depending upon
whether the slope instability itself is ﬁxed or work is limited to the installation of measures to
catch debris from any failure.

Streets:

The streets, for the most part, are in good to very good condition. There is evidence of recent
grind and asphalt overlay work and sealing, and of past slurry seal and seal coat work. Other than
View Ridge, which is in the poorest condition, and the newly paved streets, all streets are
estimated to have a pavement condition index of 65-85 (on a scale of 0-100), which makes them
excellent candidates for preventative maintenance, such as scrub seal and micro-surface. There
should be no reason to budget funds in any manner different than previous years, as the
pavement has performed well under the current system.

Club House:

The club house and immediate vicinity was reviewed for conformance with State and Federal
accessibility laws and guidelines. The report lists numerous required improvements totaling
$225,000 throughout the building and site, including $40,000 in exterior improvements.

The most costly items include:

1. Re-grading of ADA parking stall to compliant cross slope $10,000
2. Elevator required for multi-story building : $45,000
3. Lower floor restrooms multiple compliance issues $40,000
4. Game rooin not accessible — provide ramp $7,560
5. Stage area not compliant — provide chair lift $15,000




ESTIMATED MAJOR COSTS

Below is a summary of estimated major improvement costs (including design and construction
management) over the next 10 years. This chart excludes the routine maintenance work
mentioned in the summaries above.

TABLE A — ESTIMATED MAJOR IMPROVEMENT COSTS
MANDATORY IMPROVEMENTS ONLY

Component 10-year 10-year
Cost Estimate (Low) Cost Estimate (High)

Water System (Phase I only) $ 450,000* $1,200,0000
Storm Drain System - -
Sewer Lift Stations $ 200,000 $1,000,000
Electrical System - ‘ -
Gas System - -
Slope Stability $ 550,000 $1,400,000
Streets - -
Club House ADA $ 300,000 $ 300,000

Total major costs: $1,500,000 $3,900,000

* includes 50% of phase 1 only — assuming 20 year replacement program

It should be noted that although the replacement of the sanitary sewer, electrical and gas service
pipes is not identified as a requirement at this time, it may be impractical to replace the water
services without impacting these other services, as they are currently all installed in a joint
trench. In addition, the replacement of services will be a major undertaking, and it would not
likely be cost effective in the long term to replace individual utilities, when it is known that the
remainder of the services are at or near the end of their design life.

With the condition of the sewer, electrical and gas services being better than would be expected
for thetr age, it is conceivable that a replacement program could be phased over a twenty year
period, with the older phase 1 replacement scheduled for years | — 10, and phase 2 scheduled for
years 11 - 2(.

It is hard to estimate the replacement cost for all utilities without performing some level of
preliminary design, and without knowing what outside agency fees may be required to
accommodate the same. Based on the estimated cost of the water system replacement, complete
replacement of the four underground utility systems could be estimated at $4 million to $7
million (not including the sewer pump station upgrade.) An engineering study would be required
to develop a cost estimate that could be used for planning purposes.

NEXT STEPS

The purpose of the Property Condition Report is to provide an assessment and information in
order to develop a strategic investment plan based on any necessary physical improvements to
the Park. City staff will be reviewing the reports with Frei Real Estate and Assured Guaranty.




City staff will be working with the PAC and Frei Real Estate on a more detailed 5-Year Capital
Improvement Budget for consideration at the May/June MVMCC meeting. This capital budget
will provide options and include the information from the Property Condition Report.
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DATE: February 27, 2012

75 Rowland Way #200
TO: City Council Novato, CA 94945-3232
(415) 899-8900

. . . FAX (415) 899-8213
FROM: Cathy Capriola, Assistant City Manager WWW.Ci.no2vato.ca.us

Veronica Nebb, Assistant City Attorney

SUBJECT: PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT ON THE NEGOTIATED DRAFT
DELEGATION AGREEMENT AND MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT.
PROVIDE DIRECTION ON AGREEMENTS TO RETURN ON MARCH 12
FOR APPROVAL, OR IF NO SIGNIFICANT CONCERNS EXPRESSED OR
DIRECTIONS NECESSARY, APPROVE THE NEGOTIATED DOCUMENTS

SUMMARY

For the past year, a negotiating team from the PAC and City staff have been reviewing and
negotiating the MVMCC Delegation Agreement and Management Agreement. The negotiating
teams have concluded their negotiations and have come to agreement on all items except one. The
Delegation Agreement and Management Agreement are attached to this staff report in redline
version for review by Council, the full PAC board and residents.

RECOMMENDATION

At the February 27" meeting, the City Council will hear resident input and questions regarding the
Delegation Agreement and Management Agreement. In addition, feedback from the PAC Board
and Frei Real Estate will also be provided. Based on this input, the Council should provide
direction to the negotiating teams for any further changes.

The City Council does have the ability to approve the Delegation Agreement and Management
Agreement on February 27", if there are no significant concerns or issues expressed. However,
staff has reserved Monday, March 12 for another Council meeting for final action on these
documents in order to allow sufficient time for resident review. The ultimate actions for the
Council will be to:

1. Provide any additional direction to the negotiating teams for any further changes;
2. Approve the final Delegation and Management Agreements by Council and the PAC; and

3. Approval of the agreements by the PAC, Frei Real Estate Services, and Assured Guaranty.

DISCUSSION

As Council is aware, there are over twenty documents that govern the financing and operation of
MVMCC. Two of the key documents governing the overall operation of the MVMCC are the
Delegation Agreement and the Management Agreement. The Delegation Agreement is the formal
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contract between the PAC and the City (formerly, the Novato Financing Authority) which governs
the relationship between the parties as it relates to the operation of the Park. The Management
Agreement is a formal contract between the PAC and Frei Real Estate which outlines roles,
expectations and responsibilities of the PAC and the property management company relating to the
day-to-day management of the Park.

The original term of the Delegation Agreement began on March 1, 1997 and has been subject to
automatic annual renewal each year thereafter. Pursuant to the original Agreement, renegotiation
of the Agreement is to take place at particularly scheduled intervals set as October 1, 2010 and
October 1, 2025.

In Fall 2010, the Novato Financing Authority (NFA) and the Park Acquisition Corporation (PAC)
entered into renegotiation discussions on the Delegation Agreement. The PAC selected Michael
Holland and Jim Olsen as their negotiating team. The NFA, and subsequently the City, was
represented by staff, Cathy Capriola and Veronica Nebb. During the period between October 1,
2010 and January 31, 2011, the negotiating teams of the PAC and the NFA agreed to meet in order
to review the Delegation Agreement and Management Agreement and, if necessary, renegotiate
one or more of its terms.

Deadlines

The terms of the original Delegation Agreement provided that the agreement would terminate on
January 31, 2011 unless the parties agreed on a renegotiated term. While significant progress was
made in the Fall of 2010, additional time was needed in order for the parties to continue to meet
and discuss the interests previously identified by the NFA and the PAC. On January 25, 2011, the
NFA approved a first amendment to the Delegation Agreement which extended the date to
complete the renegotiations until June 30, 2011. Staff’s intention was to complete the
renegotiation process in February and March, hold a resident workshop, and then return to the
NFA in April 2011 for review of the revised documents.

Based on several factors beyond the control of the parties, the negotiations were not able to be
concluded by the June 30 deadline and an additional extension became necessary. The parties
therefore extended the Delegation Agreement from June 30, 2011 to December 31, 2011 and then
again to March 31, 2012 in order to complete the negotiation process.

Public Input Process

Early in the negotiation process, the City sought input from the public and MVMCC residents.
This process included processes to educate the public and residents, provide information on the
interests to be served by the process and an opportunity for the pubic and residents to provide
feedback. On August 23, 2010, a workshop for resident input was held by the NFA at the
MVMCC. On June 21, 2010, at a regular meeting of the NFA, staff provided an overview of
information on the Delegation Agreement and obtained initial public input on the process for
renegotiation. From August 23, 2010 to September 24, 2010, the public provided comments
though public meetings and direct correspondence and communication to staff.

Collectively, these public comments were part of the information that was utilized by staff as the
basis for an October 13, 2010 staff report which provided a summary of public comments. This
report also listed staff recommendations for the issues and areas of concern to be considered as part



of the negotiation process. The list of these issues is attached in the Attachment A - NFA'’s Interests
and Negotiation Issues (October 13, 2010 Staff Report).  The NFA Board agreed with this list
of issues to be addressed in the renegotiation process.

Negotiations

The negotiating teams for the two parties met numerous times to review the Delegation Agreement
and Management Agreement in great detail. The teams had detailed discussions regarding
operational practices, concerns, best practices, comments from residents, and legal parameters to
be considered within the revised documents. These negotiations have been productive, animated
at times, and yet respectful and professional. In addition, the negotiating teams also met with Al
Frei in two meetings to review the Management Agreement and renegotiate the terms thereof.
Overall, City staff believes that the negotiating teams have negotiated draft documents that reflect
the original interests that were communicated at the various public meetings. The negotiating
teams believe that the renegotiated Delegation and Management Agreements can be found to be
acceptable by all parties.

Draft Negotiated Changes and Summary of Proposed Changes

Attachments C and D are the proposed renegotiated Delegation Agreement and Management
Agreement. The agreements are provided in red-line format showing the proposed changes from
the original versions of the two agreements. In addition, staff has prepared a brief summary of
some of the key changes organized by the original four interests that were identified in the initial
public meetings (Trust and Organizational Clarity, Accountability, Transparency, and Protection
of the Park). This is Attachment B — Summary of Major Proposed Changes to the Delegation
Agreement and Management Agreement.

The negotiating teams for the parties have expressed that they are in agreement with all of
proposed changes in the agreements with the exception of one provision in the Delegation
Agreement. The PAC negotiating team has expressed concern with the proposed change to
Section 5.01(i) which outlines the elections of PAC members when there is a vacancy before an
election. The section in question reads as follows:

(i) Notwithstanding any provisions of its By-Laws to the contrary, during the Term of this
Agreement, PAC shall not act to appoint any individual to fill a vacancy for an unexpired term
on the PAC Board of Directors in any instance where the unexpired term of the vacant seat
exceeds six (6) months at the time of the vacancy. Where the unexpired term of the vacant seat
exceeds six (6) months at the time of the vacancy, PAC shall hold an election to fill the
unexpired term within 90 days of the date of the vacancy. During the Term of this Agreement,
PAC shall hold all elections to the PAC board in accordance with the elections guidelines
approved by PAC and Owner as the same may be amended and approved by each from
time-to-time.

The PAC negotiating team has expressed that they do not object to the six months rule, per se,
since this operating practice has already been adopted by the PAC. The negotiating team’s
objection is philosophical in nature. The PAC team has expressed that in general it has an
objection to the City providing requirements for the PAC’s internal operations within the
Delegation Agreement. As Council may recall, elections have been a sensitive and controversial
issue over time in the Park. The City staff negotiating team felt that this issue needed to be
addressed and clearly articulated in the Delegation Agreement. This is the only area of
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disagreement identified in the proposed draft renegotiated agreements. Despite these comments,
the PAC negotiating team has expressed their overall support for the edits within the negotiated
draft of the Delegation Agreement and Management Agreement.

Matrix of Roles and Responsibilities

During the resident input process, one of the key interests and feedback that staff heard from many
residents was the need for better clarity on roles and responsibilities. While the Delegation
Agreement and Management Agreement have language that attempts to clarify this, an “MVMCC
Matrix of Roles and Responsibilities” has also been added to the Delegation Agreement as Exhibit
C in order to provide additional clarity.

Compensation Adjustment for Frei Real Estate Services.

Frei Real Estate Services has managed the MVMCC since 1997. In addition to the cost of
expenses, including on-site staff for MVVCC, Frei also charges a management fee of $53,004
annually. Frei Real Estate has not had an increase during this agreement’s term since taking over
management. Mr. Frei is requesting that the fee be increased to $69,480 annually or approximately
3% of the rental income from the mobile homes. This increase would occur over two years, rising
to $60,000 in 2012, then to $69,480 in 2013.

Staff researched how this fee compares to the industry norm by contacting other public agencies
with mobile home park ownership. Below is a table of management fees paid by other California
cities that own mobile home parks.

Novato Novato _ SanFa Sanj[a
EY 10-11 FY 13-14 LaVerne  Oceanside Monica Monica
(Proposed) FY 09-10 FY 10-11
Park Spaces 315 315 185 272 105 105
Annual
Management $53,004 $69,480 $48,600 $74,864 $60,000 $125,100
Fee
Monthly
Rent/Space $613.01 $613.01 $625.48 $556.21 $325.00 $325.00
Monthly
Management $14.02 $18.38 $21.89 $22.94 $47.62 $99.29
Fee/Space
Fee Structure Flat fee Flat fee 3.5% of 3% of rental Flat fee Per space fee
(2.3% of (approximately rental income + $125 if
rental 3% of rental income $1,700/mo. occupied, $35
income) income) if unoccupied

In addition, staff contacted other professional property management companies with experience
managing mobile home parks to evaluate their fees. Based on these conversations, the industry
norms for estimated fees for MVMCC would fall between 3%-5% of total rental income. For
larger parks such as MVVMCC, the percentage is closer to 3%.

Mr. Frei was clear in his discussions with staff and the PAC Sub-committee that an adjustment in
his management fee was warranted. Staff’s review of other compensation showed that this request
was reasonable. Staff recommends that Frei Real Estate’s management fee be increased as
outlined above and as included in the Management Agreement.



Assured Guaranty

As the provider of mortgage insurance for the bonds, Assured Guaranty has a right to review,
comment and approve changes to the Delegation Agreement and the Management Agreement.
Staff provided a draft copy of the proposed renegotiated agreements to Assured Guaranty for their
review. As of the time of publishing this agenda item, we have received draft comments from
Assured Guaranty and are still discussing details on few items. We hope to provide their
comments at the February 27" meeting.

Next Steps:

At the February 27" meeting, the City Council will hear resident input and questions. In addition,
feedback from the PAC Board and Frei Real Estate will also be provided. Based on this input, the
Council should provide direction to the negotiating teams for any further changes.

The City Council does have the ability to approve the Delegation Agreement and Management
Agreement on February 27" if there are no significant concerns or issues expressed. However,
staff has reserved Monday, March 12 for another Council meeting for final action on these
documents.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A:  NFA’s Interests and Negotiation Issues (October 13, 2010 Staff Report)

Attachment B:  Summary of the Key Proposed Changes to the Delegation Agreement and
Management Agreement

Attachment C:  Renegotiated Draft Delegation Agreement

Attachment D:  Renegotiated Draft Management Agreement






Attachment A

NFA'’s Interests and Negotiation Issues

(From the October 13, 2010 Staff Report — Overall Direction for
Negotiation of the Delegation Agreement and Management Agreement)

Staff Recommendations — NFA'’s Interests and Negotiation Issues

As a publicly owned mobile home community, staff believes there are key “interests” that the
NFA Board should consider which are linked to specific changes to be considered during the
negotiations. The list below is not exhaustive, but it provides an overview of the general
direction and recommendations of staff based on the interests of the NFA.

Interest #1 -- Trust and Organizational Clarity — The NFA has an interest in promoting an
environment of trust and clarity of roles and responsibilities within the Park.

Roles and Responsibilities

= Clarify the roles and communications required of and between Owner, Financial
Security, Operator, Property Manager and other entities in the Park.

Interest #2 -- Accountability - MVMCC is a publicly owned park and therefore its assets,
funding and operating practices need to be accountable to the residents, the Owner, and to the
taxpayers of Novato. Accountability includes financial, budgeting, contracting/bidding, elections
and legal. Communication and reporting out of actions are also important components of
accountability, as well as transparency.

Financial

= Provide increased reporting and controls on disposition and acquisition of assets, the
capital and operating budgets, accounting, and audit process.

= Review and address bidding and contracting requirements.

= Review compensation for Frei Real Estate Services.

= Review process, timeline and public input for operating and capital budget.
Reporting / Enforcement

= Clarify reporting relationships and information that needs to be provided to the FSA,
PAC and the NFA; numerous instances in the Delegation Agreement that need additional
clarification where there are inconsistencies or omissions.

= Clarify enforcement provisions in Agreements; clarify ramifications and examples of
default.
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Elections

= Suggest changes to improve accountability and trust in elections to the PAC Board.

Operations

= Discuss staffing and operational approach of Management Company to ensure cost
effectiveness and efficiency.

= Review training and experience of management personnel and suggest any necessary
changes.

Legal & Risk Management

= Clarify and enhance reporting and approval process of any lawsuits, claims, legal actions,
other potential legal issues, bonding requirements and insurance coverage amounts to
meet current best practices.

Interest #3 -- Transparency — As a public entity and a resident-based community, open and
transparent decision making and communication is critical in order to build trust and confidence.

= Fully implement Brown Act for PAC for all actions. Review required PAC meetings and
communications. Discuss effectiveness of agendas and minutes to meet the goal of
transparency.

= Clarify process and role for residents to raise issues of concern.

= Consider and address conflict of interest, reporting requirements and bidding for Park
projects.

= |mprove communication between residents, NFA and PAC about issues and
accomplishments.

Interest #4 -- Protection of the Park — The NFA utilized its legal authority to purchase bonds
to secure a loan for over $17 million in order to purchase the Park and “provide the permanent
financing for the acquisition and improvement of the MVMCC”. As Owner, the NFA must
ensure that proper infrastructure investments and best practices in operation and maintenance are
conducted in order to ensure a physically safe mobile home park and to protect the Park asset.

= Clarify requirements, timing and responsibilities for the development and implementation
of a multi-year Capital Improvement Plan.
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RESTATED AND AMENDED

MARIN VALLEY MOBILE COUNTRY CLUB PARK

DELEGATION AGREEMENT

between
CITY OF NOVATO FINANCING-AUTHORITFY
and

PARK ACQUISITION CORPORATION OF
MARIN VALLEY MOBILE COUNTRY CLUB

Dated as of Mareh-1-1997March 31, 20142
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PROPOSED NEGOTIATED DRAFT - FOR REVIEW

RESTATED AND AMENDED MARIN VALLEY
MOBILE COUNTRY CLUB PARK
DELEGATION AGREEMENT

This_Restated and Amended Marin Valley Mobile Country Club Park Delegation Agreement
(this "Agreement”) is made and entered into as of Mareh—1,—1997 March 31, 2012
December1997December 31,2011 between The City of Novato Financing-Autheority—(the
"Owner"), ajointpowers-authority-duly-organized-and existing-under-the constitution and-aws
of-the-State—of California—and-the Park Acquisition Corporation of Marin Valley Mobile
Country Club (the "PAC"), a California nonprofit, mutual benefit corporation duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of California.

| STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT AND PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California
(the "JPA Law") permits two or more local public entities by agreement to jointly exercise any
powers common to them; and

WHEREAS, certain counties and the City of Novato have entered into a Joint Exercise of
Powers Agreement (the "Joint Powers Agreement™) creating the California Local Government
Finance Authority ("CLGFA") for the purpose, among other things, of assisting local agencies
to obtain financing for public capital improvements whenever there are significant public
benefits, and to make loans and enter into other agreements with local agencies; and

WHEREAS, CLGFA is authorized by the provisions of the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling
Act of 1985, constituting Article 4 (commencing with Section 6584) of Chapter 5 of Division 7
of Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California, as amended, a resolution adopted
by CLGFA on February 19, 1997 and the terms of the Trust Indenture dated as of March 1,
1997 (the "Indenture™) by and between CLGFA and First Trust of California N.A., (the
"Trustee") to issue $15,485,000 aggregate principal amount of Senior Revenue Bonds, Series
1997A (Marin Valley Mobile Country Club Park Acquisition Project), Issued for the Benefit of
the Novato Financing Authority (California), Facilitated by the California Local Government
Finance Authority (the "Senior Bonds"), and $1,585,000 aggregate principal amount of
Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series 1997B (Marin Valley Mobile Country Club Park
Acquisition Project), Issued for the Benefit of the Novato Financing Authority (California),
Facilitated by the California Local Government Finance Authority (the "Subordinate Bonds");
and

SRR E e cn e n ey

WHEREAS, the Novato Financing Authority (NFA), a joint powers authority duly organized
and existing under the constitution and laws of the State of California and predecessor in
interest to Owner borrowed the proceeds of the Senior Bonds and Subordinate Bonds (the
"Bonds") from CLGFA (the "Loan") for the purpose of providing the permanent financing for
the acquisition and improvement of the Marin Valley Mobile Country Club Park (the "Project")

| by the OwnerNFA; and
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PROPOSED NEGOTIATED DRAFT - FOR REVIEW

WHEREAS, the NFA and the PAC entered into the Marin Valley Mobile Country Club Park
Delegation Agreement as of March 1, 1997 (the “Original Delegation Agreement”) in order to
establish and declare the terms and conditions upon which the PAC would perform certain
obligations and duties with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 4.02 of the Original Delegation Agreement, the Original
Delegation Agreement was subject to periodic reneqotiation, with the first of such
renegotiation periods occurring on October 1, 2010; and

WHEREAS, on March 8, 2011, the NFA transferred ownership of the Project to the City of
Novato and the NFA and the City of Novato entered into an Assignment and Assumption
Agreement dated, March 8, 2011, whereby the City of Novato assumed the obligations and
benefits of the Original Delegation Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in order to satisfy the periodic renegotiation obligations of Section 4.02 of the
Original Delegation Agreement, amend the requirements thereof and continue to establish and
declare the terms and conditions upon which the PAC will perform certain obligations and
duties with respect to the Project, the Owner and the PAC wish to enter into this
Agreement;Restated and Amended Marin Valley Mobile Country Club Delegation Agreement

(Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, all acts and proceedings required by law necessary to make this Agreement, when
executed by the Owner and the PAC, the valid, binding and legal obligations of the Owner and
the PAC, and to constitute this Agreement a valid and binding agreement for the uses and
purposes herein set forth in accordance with its terms, have been done and taken, and the
execution and delivery of this Agreement have been in all respects duly authorized by the
respective parties thereto; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of, and in reliance upon, the covenants and conditions
contained in this Agreement to be kept and performed by the respective parties, it is mutually
agreed as follows:

ARTICLE |
RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

This Agreement shall govern the relationship of the parties hereto and is the contract by which
the PAC shall perform the duties delegated to it by Owner as to the operation and control of the
Project and associated facilities.

Section 1.01.

The Owner. The Owner wit-heldis the legal owner holding title to the Project _and is
responsible for the financial control and oversight of the Project.

Section 1.02.

The PAC. In performing its obligations under this Agreement, the PAC is engaged solely in the
capacity of an independent contractor. It is expressly understood that no relationship between
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the Owner or the State of California and the PAC, other than that of independent contractor, has
been or is intended to be created by this Agreement. This Agreement does not constitute, and
the parties to it do not intend it to create a partnership or a joint venture, or the relationship of
master and servant or principal and agent.

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

The capitalized terms used herein which are included as defined terms in the Indenture shall
have the same meanings defined for and assigned to them in the Indenture. Additionally, for the
purposes of this Agreement, the following additional terms shall have the following meanings:

“Assured Guaranty’” means Assured Guaranty Municipal Corporation (formerly known as
Financial Security Assurance Inc.)

"Audited Financial Statements” means the balance sheet relating to operations of the Project
pursuant to this Agreement as of the end of each Fiscal Year during the Term and the related
statements of earnings and cash flows for the year then ended, prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and accompanied by an opinion thereon issued by an
independent certified public accountant or accounting firm selected by the RPACOwner and

approved by the-Owner-and-Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty in accordance with Section
8.03

"Bond" or "Bonds" means, collectively, any one or all, as the case may be, of the Senior Bonds
and the Subordinate Bonds.

"Budget" means income and expense projections for the Fiscal Year as required under the
Management Agreement.

"Business Day" means any day other than (a) a Saturday or Sunday, (b) a day on which (i)
banking institutions in the City of New York, New York or San Francisco, California are
authorized or obligated by law or executive order to be closed or (ii) the New York Stock
Exchange is authorized or obligated by law or executive order to be closed or (c) with respect to
actions required to be taken by the Owner only, a day on which the offices of the City of Novato
are closed to the public.

"Capital Plan™ means the capital expenditure plan submitted by the Owner (or the Property
Manager on its behalf) and approved by the Controlling Party, as provided in the Management
Agreement and the Loan Agreement.

"Effective Date" means March 3113, 19972012.

"Fiscal Year" means the twelve-month period commencing July 1 and ending June 30 of the
next calendar year.

"Hazardous Material" has the meaning set forth in Section 15.02.
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"Indenture™ means that certain Trust Indenture, dated as of March 1, 1997, by and between
CLGFA and the Trustee, pursuant to which the Bonds are issued and secured, together with any
amendments or supplements thereto.

"Management Agreement” means the management agreement in substantially the form set
forth in Exhibit A hereto to be entered into between the Property Manager and the PAC.

"Owner" means the City of Novato-Firaneing-Autherity, its successors and assigns.

"PAC" means the Park Acquisition Corporation of Marin Valley Mobile Country Club, its
successors and assigns.

"Project" means the MarinMann Valley Mobile Country Club Park as more fully described in
the Loan Agreement.

"Property Manager" means, initialy—Storz—Management—Company—te-Frei Real Estate

Services and any successor property manager appointed in accordance with the terms and
provisions of the Management Agreement.

"Records™ has the meaning set forth in Section 8.01.
"Renegotiation Year" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.02.

"Term" means, as applicable, the Initial Term and each Subsequent Term (as such terms are
defined in Section 4.01 hereof)

ARTICLE Il
THE PROJECT

The Owner, in reliance upon and in consideration of the representations, warranties, covenants
and conditions contained in this Agreement, grants to the PAC, and the PAC, in reliance upon
and in consideration of the representations, warranties, covenants and conditions contained in
this Agreement, accepts from the Owner, subject to the restrictions stated in this Agreement,
the exclusive right to operate and control the Project, subject to the provisions of this
Agreement and the rights of Owner, for the purpose of providing land and a portion of the
mobile home sites located at the Project to persons and families of low or moderate income
within the City of Novato, California.; previded-that-theThe PAC is obligated to enter into a
Management Agreement, which separates the PAC from the day-to-day management of the
Project and provides for those duties to be performed by a professional property manager and
have such an agreement in effect at all times. Said Management Agreement shall be in form
and substance satisfactory to Finaneial-SeeurityOwner and Assured Guaranty, and with a
Property Manager approved by the Owner (which approval may not be unreasonably withheld
and shall not be required if a Trigger Event or an Event of Default under the Indenture exists)
and Financial SecurityAssured Guaranty., and to have such an agreement in effect at all times.
The Owner hereby approves the form of Management Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A
and approves the initial-Management Agreement with Frei Real Estate Services, in the
nitiatform attached hereto, as Property Manager.
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ARTICLE IV
TERM OF AGREEMENT

Section 4.01. Term of Agreement.

The initial term of this Agreement (the "Initial Term") shall be for the period beginning on the
Effective Date and ending on the 31st day of December, £19972012. On January 1, 19982013
and each anniversary thereof, this Agreement will be extended for an additional term (each
such term, a "Subsequent Term™) consisting of the next 12 consecutive months, unless (a) an
Event of Default exists under the Indenture, a default exists under this Agreement or a Trigger
Event exists, or (b) the Owner or the PAC (with the consent, which shall not be unreasonably
withheld, or at the direction, of Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty) gives written notice to
each other party hereto and to the Trustee and Finanecial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty that it does
not intend to extend the term of this Agreement, or (c) the parties hereto are unable to reach an
agreement as described in Section 4.02 herein._This Agreement may be terminated at any time
upon sixty (60) days prior written notice by either party to the other with the written consent of
Assured Guaranty. If an Event of Default under the Indenture, a default under this Agreement
or a Trigger Event exists, this Agreement may not be extended for a Subsequent Term without
the prior written consent of Firanetal-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, such consent to be in its sole
discretion. Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, the Owner shall become
obligated to assume immediately all of the PAC's duties, obligations and rights contained in the
Mortgage Loan Documents including, without limitation, the obligation to enter into the
Management Agreement with thea Property Manager.

Section 4.02. Periodic Renegotiation.

-On Oetober-December 1, 20102 and on October 1, 206252017; this Agreement shall be subject
to review by both parties hereto. During this review period, the parties agree to meet together at
mutually agreeable times for the review of this Agreement and, if necessary, to renegotiate one
or more of the terms hereof. If the parties agree to modifications of this Agreement, such
modifications, if consented to in writing by Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, shall be
incorporated herein by amendment as hereinafter provided, such amendments to become
effective on the date stipulated therein. If, after good faith negotiations, the parties cannot reach
agreement on the proposed changes noticed for renegotiation by January 31 of the immediately
succeeding year, this Agreement shall terminate as of such January 31.

Section 4.03. [RESERVED].
Section 4.04. Duties Upon Termination.
(a) Upon the termination of this Agreement, the appointment of the PAC shall terminate.

(b) In the event the PAC's duties, responsibilities and liabilities hereunder are terminated
pursuant to this Agreement, the PAC shall discharge such duties and responsibilities during the
period from the date it acquires knowledge of such termination until the effective date thereof
with the same degree of diligence and prudence which it is obligated to exercise hereunder, and
shall take no action whatsoever that might impair or prejudice the rights or financial condition
of its successor or the Owner. Furthermore, the PAC agrees to cooperate with the Owner, the
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| Trustee and Firanetal-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty and any successor hereunder in effecting the
termination of the PAC's duties and responsibilities hereunder. The PAC shall, upon the request
of the Owner but at the expense of the PAC, deliver to the Owner or the successor delegate all
files, documents and records (including computer tapes and diskettes including data but not
programs) relating to the Project, and otherwise use its best efforts to effect the orderly and
efficient transfer of its rights, duties and responsibilities to the assuming party. The Owner and
the PAC agree to perform their respective duties and obligations contained in the Mortgage
Loan Documents.

(c) Upon termination of this Agreement, the PAC shall return to the possession and control of
Owner all of Owner’s personal property located at the Project as the same has been identified
on the Inventory of Owner Personal Property except any such property as has been approved
for disposition or sale by Owner in writing.

ARTICLE V
OPERATION AND CONTROL OF THE PROJECT

| Section 5.01. Operation of the Project.

(a) The PAC agrees to operate, maintain and control the Project in accordance with the
terms of the Mortgage Loan Documents.

{b)-(b) Subject to the provisions of this Agreement and the rights of Owner, PAC is
obligated to enter into a Management Agreement, which separates the PAC from the
day-to-day management of the Project and provides for those duties to be performed by
a professional property manager. The responsibilities of the parties and the Property
Manager shall be as set forth herein and in the Management Agreement. A
table”*MVMCC Matrix of Roles and Responsibilities” efrespensibilities-is attached
hereto as Exhibit CB and incorporated herein by reference. In the event of an
inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement, the Management Agreement and
Exhibit CB, Owner shall be determine the resolution of said inconsistency (with the
consent of Assured Guarantee:). The PAC agrees to retain at all times the Property
Manager and other experts experienced with providing management, advice and other
duties with respect to mobile home parks in order to effectively perform its duties and
responsibilities herein set forth. The fees and expenses of the Property Manager and
other such experts shall be set forth in the Operating Budget and paid solely from
Revenues of the Project as provided in Section 5.03(b) and (c) in the Indenture. The
PAC shall enter into a Management Agreement with the Property Manager in
substantially the form set forth in Exhibit A-—with-enby-sueh. Any and all changes
thereinas, modifications or amendments to said Management Agreement proposed by
PAC and the Property Manager shall be—appre\,ceel—m—wnﬂng—byrequwe the advance
written approval of the Owner {w . . =
Finaneial-Seeurity-and Assured Guarantee If the Property Manager falls to perform
any or all of its obligations under the Management Agreement in any material respect,

| the PAC agrees to immediately notify the Owner and Financial-Seeurity—Assured
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Guaranty in writing of such failure and, if directed by the Owner, with the consent of
Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, or by Finraneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, shall

take such action as so directed by such party.

_(c) The PAC shall not use or permit the Project, or any portion thereof, to be used for any
purposes other than that set forth herein and in the Management Agreement, except as
otherwise mutually agreed upon with the Owner with the prior written consent of Firancial
SeeurityAssured Guaranty.

(d) The PAC shall, and shall ensure that the Property Manager shall, operate the Project in
compliance with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local law, including, but not
limited to, the Mobile Home Residency Law (California Civil Code, Section 798 et. seq.),
Title 25 of the California Administrative Code and Ordinance No. 1341 of the City of
Novato and any other applicable laws, requlations and ordinances now in effect or
hereinafter enacted, and shall maintain any and all records necessary and proper to show
compliance therewith. PAC shall not amend or notice the amendment of the Park Rules
without the express written permission of Owner and full compliance with all state laws
relating to the amendment of Mobilehome Park Rules (California Civil Code, Section

798.25)..

-(e) In the exercise of its duties hereunder PAC understands that the Owner is a public
agency and that the Project is subject to certain laws, rules and regulations applicable to
property owned by a municipality. The PAC and each of the members of the Board of
Directors thereof, shall ensure that its primary function and duty under this Agreement shall
be for the operation of the Project on behalf of Owner and shall, in said regard, at all times
operate the Project in the best interest of the Owner and in accordance with the laws, rules
and requlations applicable to real property owned by a municipality. The Owner and PAC
have a shared interest in operating the Project to preserve the health, safety and welfare of
the residents of the Project, including the affordability of the housing and preservation of
the use of the land upon which the Project is located as a senior mobilehome park. Neither
PAC, nor any member of the Board of Directors thereof, -shall aet undertake or take any
action whatsoever which is adverse to Owner or Assured Guaranty in the operation and
management of the Project nor shall PAC represent to any third party any ownership
interest in the Project on the part of PAC. PAC, and each and every member of the Board of
Directors thereof, -shall direct all communication regarding the Mortgage Loan Documents
only to Owner and shall not communicate directly with the CLGFA or Assured Guaranty
except through the Owner. In the conduct of all of its meetings and business, PAC, and
each and every member of the Board of Directors thereof, shall at all times adhere to the
provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code Section 50950 et seq.)
as if the PAC were considered to be a Legislative Body subject to the provisions thereof.
PAC shall conduct meetings of the Board of Directors of PAC at the Project site no less
often than quarterly. The PAC shall timely provide Owner with copies of all agendas and
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors of PAC.

-(f) In the exercise of its duties hereunder, PAC shall adhere, and shall cause the Property
Manager to adhere, to the Owner’s purchasing policy and the applicable provisions of the
California Public Contract Code. In this regard, -PAC shall, and shall cause the Property
Manager to, follow the provisions of Exhibit B of the Management Agreement hereto
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relating to any and all contracts or expenditure of Project funds for any work of
improvement on or at the Project.

-(g) PAC representatives-shall meet quarterly with staff designated by Owner in order to
review the actions undertaken by PAC and the Property Manager during the previous
guarter, expected upcoming actions and to review the performance of the duties of PAC,
Owner and Property Manager pursuant to this Agreement.

-(h) PAC shall maintain_an active website for the Project upon which it shall post
information to residents regarding the Project including, but not limited to, agendas and
minutes of all PAC board meetings, a description of the resident input process and forms for
residents to submit relating to same, notifications regarding events or actions in the Project,
monthly financial reports as submitted to Owner pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, a
copy of the approved budget and mid-year budgets, -notification regarding Owner meetings
relating to the Project as requested by Owner and any other information requested by
Owner to be placed on the website for the purposes of communication to the residents. Said
website may also be used for the purposes of communication of information regarding the
actions of HOL and MarVal meetings and activity but shall not be used for communication
of personal messages or information from other organizations or entities. To the extent that
Project funds are used for communication to residents within the Project in the form of a
newsletter, posting, mailing, or other form of communication, such communication shall
adhere to the same rules as set forth for the website. All information available on the
website shall also be available at the clubhouse office in the Project so that it is available to
those residents without computers. PAC shall provide the Property Manager, Assured
Guaranty, and Owner direct-access to the website through the PAC’s website administrator
so that the Property Manager and Owner -can ditecthy-post information to the website for
the residents. The PAC will ensure that information provided from the City, Assured
Guaranty or the Owner is posted on the MVMCC web site wthin three business days of
email receipt to the PAC’s website administrator.

-(1) Notwithstanding any provisions of its By-Laws to the contrary, during the Term of this
Agreement, PAC shall not act to appoint any individual to fill a vacancy for an unexpired
term on the PAC Board of Directors in any instance where the unexpired term of the vacant
seat exceeds piresix (96) months at the time of the vacancy. Where the unexpired term of
the vacant seat exceeds ainesix (96) months at the time of the vacancy, PAC shall hold an
election to fill the unexpired term within 90 days of the date of the vacancy. During the
Term of this Agreement, PAC shall hold all elections to the PAC board in accordance with
the elections guidelines approved by PAC and Owner as the same may be amended and
approved by each from time to time.

Section 5.02. Owner's Right of Entry.

The Owner and Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty shall have the right, at reasonable times
during the term of this Agreement, to enter upon the Project to the extent necessary to inspect
the Project and the Records of the Project as described in Section 8.01 hereof.
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ARTICLE VI
CONSIDERATION

The PAC shall not be entitled to receive compensation for its services hereunder, but shall be
reimbursed for its actual verified expenses incurred in performing such services, including, but
not I|m|ted to reasonable fees and expenses ef—tts—eeunsel—and—the—eests—ef—an—e#e#s—and

ll alalalliaVa N-axpense N a oHOW aaTallla a a

exeeeel%&relatlnq solely to the performance of the obllqatlons of PAC pursuant to the terms of
this Agreement and as approved through the annual budget process as set forth herein. Such
reasonable fees and expenses shall include the costs of an errors and omissions insurance policy
for PAC and; printing costs for the conduct of elections and meeting notices. -Such reasonable
fees and expenses shall not include legal or other fees or costs associated with the formation or
operation of other entities, or costs associated with the acquisition of real or personal property
by the PAC. All actual and verified reasonable expenses of the PAC in performing its services
hereunder shall be payable as follows: (i) an amount not to exceed $4,000 each Fiscal Year
shall be included in the Budget as an operating expense, payable from Revenues of the Project
as provided in Section 5.03(b) and (c) of the Indenture. The PAC shall provide a certificate to
Finaneial—Seeurity Property Manager and Owner setting forth all expenses incurred in
performing such services_and shall provide receipts or other proof of expenditures. Owners
shall provide a copy of same to Assured Guaranty. Except as specifically set forth in the
immediately preceding sentence, neither the PAC nor any officers, directors or employees of
the PAC shall be permitted to receive or handle any funds related to the Project and the Bonds,
it being expressly understood that the Property Manager shall have the sole right to collect
revenues and other amounts related to the Project to be deposited into the Deposit Only
Account, and to, receive certain amounts from the Trustee in order to maintain and operate the
Project.

ARTICLE VII
BUDGET APPROVAL AND EXPENDITURE LIMITATIONS

Section 7.01. Annual Budget Approval.

The PAC shall ensure that a Budget is prepared for the Project pursuant-Section-9-ef-the
Management-Agreementand submitted for approval pursuant Section 9 of the Management

Agreement. PAC shall further ensure that a Capital Plan is prepared for the Project and
submitted for approval pursuant to Section 10 of the Management Agreement. PAC shall
ensure that any and all changes to the proposed Budget and Capital Plan which are required by
Owner and/or Assured Guaranty pursuant to Section 9 and 10 of the Management Agreement
are incorporated into the Budget and/or Capital Plan prior to final adoption. PAC shall ensure
that residents have an opportunity to provide input to PAC regarding the proposed Budget and
Capital Plan prior to the submission of the proposed Budget and Capital Plan to Owner and
Assured Guaranty for approval.

Section 7.02. Expenditure Limitations.

The PAC agrees that the following limitations will apply to its activities as they relate to
financial matters:
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@) No member of the PAC's Board of Directors shall be entitled to receive any
compensation for service in that capacity. The PAC's Board of Directors shall
certify to the Owner on the Closing Date that none of such Directors have received
any compensation from Bond proceeds or any other source of Bond proceeds or
Project funds.

(b) The annual expenditures for the Property Manager and other experts with respect to
the Project shall be reasonable in amount and shall be contained in the Budget.

(c) No expenditures related to the Project shall be inconsistent with the usual good
practices in the mobilehome park industry in the San Francisco Bay area. All
expenditures related to the Project shall, in the best business judgment of the PAC
and the Property Manager be made for the benefit of the Project.

(d) No expenditures of Project funds shall be made unless provided for in the Budget
and Capital Plan or approved in advance by Owner.

(e) Notwithstanding approval of the Budget and Capital Plan by Owner and Assured
Guaranty, any and all expenditures of Project funds for any work of improvement
on or at the Project shall be made only in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit
B of the Management Agreement hereto.

() Notwithstanding approval of the Budget and Capital Plan by Owner and Assured
Guaranty, reallocation of budgeted funds between major categories or line items
within said categories shall be made only in compliance with Section 9 of the
Management Agreement.

Section 7.03. Monthly Reports.

On the twentieth day of each month, commencing April May-20, 20121997, the PAC will cause
the Property Manager to provide Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, the Owner and the PAC
with a Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement, Balance Sheet and Budget Control
Report for the prior month._PAC shall post of copy of each of said documents on the Project
website and shall make the same available in hard copy at the on-site office at the Project.

ARTICLE VI
RECORDS, REPORTS AND AUDITS

The PAC shall cause the Property Manager to maintain the books and records of the Project on
an accrual basis and the books and records shall be audited annually by a firm of natienaty
recognized certified public accountants selected by Owner and approved byaceeptable—to

Financial- Security-and-the Owner-Assured Guaranty.

Section 8.01. Maintenance of Records.

Page 11



PROPOSED NEGOTIATED DRAFT - FOR REVIEW

The PAC shall cause the Property Manager to maintain, at the offices of the Project or Property
Manager’s office during the Term of this Agreement, papers, contracts, books, ledgers,
journals, accounts and other data (collectively referred to as "Records") which (a) reflect the
identity and interest of all persons having any beneficial interest, whether direct or indirect, in
the PAC or the Project; (b) reflect the identity and capacity of all officers, directors and other
persons having managerial responsibility of and for the PAC or the Project; (c) reflect all of the
business activities of the Project; and (d) verify compliance with the provisions of the Pledge
Agreement. These Records shall include, but not be limited to, the financial and other Records
which reflect all of the receipts and disbursements of whatever nature from, on and after the
date of delivery of the Bonds related to the Project.

Section 8.02. Examination of Records.

The PAC shall permit the Owner and Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty to examine and, at
the expense of the Project to have copies made of all Records required to be maintained
pursuant to this Section. Any such examination and copying shall be during reasonable
business hours and upon the giving of reasonable notice to the PAC or the Property Manager.
PAC shall ensure that all resolutions, minutes, and reports of PAC or the Property Manager
pertaining to the Project shall be sent to Owner within 48 hours of the preparation of same.

Section 8.03. Financial Statements.

The PAC shall cause to be furnished to the Owner and Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty
quarterly and annual financial statements with respect to the Project and the Agency in
accordance with Section 2.02(c) of the Insurance Agreement. The expense of suehthe annual
audit_required herein shall be paid or reimbursed from the Revenues of the Project as an
operating expense included in the Budget.

Section 8.04. Reports and Certificates.

-The PAC hereby undertakes to provide or cause the Property Manager to provide all reports
and certificates required to be provided by the Owner pursuant to the Mortgage Loan
Documents.

Section 8.05. Location of Records.

The Records shall be kept and maintained in such a manner as is usual and customary for
businesses of the same type conducted in the State of California at the time- and as required by
Owner. In no event, however, shall those Records be less detailed and complete than is
customary or required by law for privately held businesses of the same type in the State of
California at the time of the execution of this Agreement. The PAC may not destroy or dispose
of any Records which-are—five-yearsof the Project or mere-of-age-afterregarding the Project
without the prior written consent of Owner. The actual destruction of records shall be approved
and completed in accordance with Owner’s record retention policy. Notwithstanding Owner’s
approval of any request to destroy Records, PAC shall ensure that prior to the destruction of any
Records such Records have been offered to the Owner and Finaneial-Seeurity—Assured
Guaranty for retention and/or copying.
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ARTICLE IX
MAINTENANCE AND ALTERATIONS TO THE PROJECT

Section 9.01. Personal Property.

The PAC shall provide and maintain in good repair all personal property and equipment which
may be necessary to enable the PAC to operate the Project for the purposes authorized by this
Agreement and to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement. Other than with respect to the
Project, the Owner shall not be permitted the use of any personal property or equipment of the
Project during the term of this Agreement. The Owner is not required to furnish or maintain any
items of personal property or equipment._PAC shall not sell, transfer, gift, hypothecate, lend, or
otherwise dispose of any of the personal property of Owner without the express written consent
of Owner and in accordance with the surplus property disposition policies of Owner. To the
extent that Project funds are at any time used to purchase or otherwise acquire or maintain any
personal property to be used at the Project, said acquisition shall be made in accordance with
the purchasing policy of Owner as set forth in Exhibit B of the Management Agreement and
such personal property shall become the property of Owner.

Section 9.02. Mechanics Liens.

-During the term of this Agreement, the PAC will not in any way encumber or cloud the title to
the Project, or any part thereof, and will promptly pay and discharge any and all debts
contracted by it in reference thereto for labor, material, or services or anything connected with
or used by it upon the Owner's property to the end that no liens shall attach thereto. If,
nevertheless, any such lien shall be recorded, such lien may be contested in good faith by the
PAC with the written consent of Finaneial-SecurityAssured Guaranty and Owner.

ARTICLE X

[RESERVED]
USE BY THIRD PARTIES

Except in accordance with the provisions of this Article 10, PAC shall not rent, sublet, or permit
the use of any portion of the Project (Club House) by any non-resident, business or individual
except as the same may be guests of a resident at that resident’s unit or as guests of a resident
hosting a function at the facilities within the Project. All use of any portion of the Project by
other than the PAC shall require compliance with the Owner’s/PAC’s facility rental policy as
the same may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE XI
[RESERVED]

ARTICLE XII
INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

Section 12.01. Indemnification.

The PAC agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Owner, Finaneial-Security;
CLOFAAssured Guaranty, CLGFA and the Trustee and their respective officials, officers,
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| agents, servants and employees, from and against any and all claims, demands, suits, causes of
action or damages, of any kind or character, including reasonable attorneys' fees, and by
whomever claimed, arising out of or in any way connected with (i) the operation and control of
the Project by the PAC, (ii) any of the activities of the PAC, its agents, contractors, employees,
concessionaires or assigns, conducted upon the Project or in connection with the operation and
control of the Project, (iii) the PAC's performance under this Agreement or any other agreement
to which the PAC is a party which pertains to the Project, (iv) the PAC's violation of or
noncompliance with any applicable law, ordinance or regulation, and/or (v) the PAC's violation
of any law, ordinance or regulation governing or pertaining to Hazardous Materials. However,
the PAC shall have the right to contest the validity of any and all claims and demands and
defend any and all such suits, causes of action, and claims for damages, of any kind or character
and by whomsoever claimed, as the PAC may deem necessary or proper.

Section 12.02. Insurance Coverage.

a) The PAC shall cause the Property Manager to maintain in full force and effect at all
times during the Term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required under the
Loan Agreement and the Insurance Agreement as required by Section 8 of the
Management Agreement.

b) PAC shall ensure that such coverage shall name Owner as additional insured as
required by the Management Agreement.

c) PAC shall further maintain in full force and effect at all times during the Term of
this Agreement, insurance for PAC as set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto. The
funding for the insurance may be paid for from funds provided to the PAC under
Article VI of this Delegation Agreement.

d) PAC shall ensure that any person, individual, firm or corporation using or renting
the facilities within the Project, other than a resident or any resident using or renting
the facilities within the Project for any purpose which involves the attendance of
non-resident individuals shall be required to comply with Owner’s insurance
requirements for the rental of City buildings as the same may be amended from
time-to-time.

Section 12.03. Evidence of Insurance.

-Evidence of all insurance and endorsements as set forth above shall be provided by the PAC to
the Owner, CLGFA and Financial-Security-Assured Guaranty prior to the commencement of
the Term of this Agreement, annually thereafter and otherwise at such times and in such
manner as the Owner, CLGFA or Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty shall from time-to-time
request.

ARTICLE X1
ASSIGNMENT
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The PAC shall not assign, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of this
Agreement, or any of its rights, privileges, or obligations under this Agreement, or the Project
or any portion of the Project, nor shall the PAC suffer any other person to operate the Project or
any portion thereof, without the prior written consent of the Owner and Financial
SeeurityAssured Guaranty, and then only upon such terms and conditions as may be prescribed
by the Owner and Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty. Any consent granted shall not be
deemed to confer any right upon the PAC to thereafter do or suffer any of these prohibited acts.
A-majority For the Term of the- PAC's-beardthis Agreement all of directorsthe members of the
Board of Directors of PAC shall consist of tenants at the Project and no member of the Board of
Directors shall be a member of the governing body of any other entity doing business with the
Project or any for profit or not-for profit entity which proposes any sale or transfer of the
Project to such entity.

ARTICLE XIV
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

The performance of each of the PAC's obligations under this Agreement is a condition as well
as a covenant. The PAC's right to continue its operation and control of the Project is
conditioned upon such performance.

Section 14.01. Events of Default.

The occurrence of any of the following shall
constitute a default and breach of this Agreement by the PAC:

@) If the PAC is denied any license legally required to operate a mobilehome park or if
the PAC ceases to operate the Project.

(b) If the PAC fails to cause to be made any payment required by this Agreement, the
Loan Agreement or the Insurance Agreement or any other charge to be paid by the
PAC as and when due, where such failure continues for one Business Day after
written notice thereof by the Owner, the Trustee or Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured
Guaranty to the PAC.

(©) If (i) a general assignment or general arrangement for the benefit of creditors made
by the PAC; (ii) a petition for adjudication of bankruptcy or reorganization or
rearrangement is filed by or against the PAC; (iii) there is appointed a trustee or
receiver to take possession of substantially all of the PAC's assets; or (iv)
substantially all of the PAC's assets are subjected to attachment, execution or other
judicial seizure which is not discharged within 30 days.

(d) Any representation or warranty made by the PAC under this Agreement, the Loan
Agreement, the Management Agreement, the Insurance Agreement or any other
agreement related to the Project or the Bonds to which the PAC is a party, or in any
certificate or report furnished under this Agreement, the Loan Agreement, the
Management Agreement, the Insurance Agreement or any other agreement related
to the Project or the Bonds to which the PAC is a party, shall prove to be untrue or
incorrect in any material respect as of the date when made or deemed to be made.
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A continuing violation or breach of any covenant or material term of this
Agreement, the Loan Agreement, the Management Agreement, the Insurance
Agreement or any other agreement related to the Project or the Bonds to which the
PAC is a party (other than a failure or breach described in another paragraph of this
Section 14.01) for a period of 30 days after written notice of such breach is given to
the PAC by the Owner, the Trustee or Financial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty,
provided that, if such failure shall be of a nature that it cannot be cured within 30
days, such failure shall not constitute an event of default hereunder if, within such
30-day period, the PAC shall have given notice to Finaneial-SeeurityAssured
Guaranty, the Trustee and the Owner of corrective action it proposes to take, which
corrective action is consented to in writing by the Owner, the Trustee and Firanctal
SeeurityAssured Guaranty, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed, and the PAC shall thereafter pursue such corrective action diligently until
such default is cured.

After notice and an opportunity to cure, a violation of the provisions of the Ralph M.

Brown Act (California Government Code Section 50950 et seq.) relating to the
meetings of the PAC Board of Directors.

H(g) Failure of the PAC to have a Property Manager operating the Project and a

Management Agreement in effect at all times.

{g}(h) Failure of the PAC to respond, in a timely manner, to any written inquiry of the

Owner or Finanetal-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty pertaining to any reports prepared
pursuant to the Management Agreement.

{h}(1) _An "Event of Default" has occurred under the Management Agreement.

H(1)__An "Event of Default” has occurred under any agreement pertaining to the Project

into which the PAC and/or the Property Manager have entered into.

H(K) _Any claim, action, proceeding or lawsuit is filed by the PAC against the Owner.
Hany
)] Failure of PAC or any member of the Board of Directors thereof, to-act in the best

interest of the Project and Owner in performance of its duties pursuant to the Terms
of this Agreement.

k}(m) Any insurance is not procured or maintained as provided for in this Agreement as

(n)

the result of any act or omission by the PAC.

Any member of the PAC Board of Directors or the Board as a whole takes any

action other than action relating to the rental rates, or improvements to the Project,
which results in personal financial gain to said individual or Board.

Section 14.02. Rights and Remedies.

Upon the occurrence of a default by the PAC, and at any time thereafter, with or without further
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notice or demand and without limiting the Owner in the exercise of any right or remedy which
it may have, Finaneial-Security—Assured Guaranty or the Owner (with Finaneial-Seeurity
Assured Guaranty consent) shall be entitled to terminate the PAC's rights hereunder by any
lawful means, in which case this Agreement shall terminate and the PAC shall immediately
surrender any and all control over the Project to the Owner. In such event, the Owner shall have
the immediate right to remove all persons and property of the PAC and such property may be
removed and stored in a public warehouse or elsewhere at the cost of, and for the account of, the
PAC, all without service of notice or resort to legal process and without becoming liable for any
loss or damage which might be occasioned thereby.

Section 14.03. Procedure for Termination.

The Owner shall not be deemed to have terminated this Agreement, the PAC's rights hereunder
or the liability of the PAC to pay any payment required under this Agreement, the Loan
Agreement or the Insurance Agreement thereafter to accrue or its liability for damages under
any of the provisions hereof, unless the Owner shall have notified the PAC in writing that it has
so elected to terminate this Agreement.

Section 14.04. Cumulative Nature of Remedies.

All rights, options and remedies of the Owner contained in this Agreement shall be construed
and held to be cumulative, and no one of them shall be exclusive of the other, and the Owner
shall have the right to pursue any one or all of such remedies or any other remedy or relief
which may be provided by law whether or not stated in this Agreement.

Section 14.05. No Waiver.

No waiver of any default of the PAC hereunder shall be implied from any omission by the
Owner or Finanetal-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty to take any action on account of such default if
such default persists or is repeated, and no express waiver shall affect default other than as
specified in that waiver. The consent or approval by the Owner or Finaneial-Security-Assured
Guaranty to or of any act by the PAC requiring the Owner's or Finrancial-Seeurity'sAssured
Guaranty's consent or approval shall not be deemed to waive or render unnecessary the Owner's
or Finaneial-Seeurity'sAssured Guaranty's consent to or approval of any subsequent similar acts
by the PAC. No waiver by the Owner or Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty of a breach of
any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement by the PAC shall be construed or
held to be a waiver of any succeeding or preceding breach of the same or any other term,
covenant or condition.

ARTICLE XV
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Section 15.01. Prohibition of Storage.

The PAC shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Material to be brought upon, kept or used in
or about the Project, by the PAC, its agents, employees, contractors or invitees in a manner or
for a purpose prohibited by any governmental agency or authority. If the presence of any
Hazardous Material on the Project caused or permitted by the PAC prior to or during the term of
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this Agreement results in any contamination of the Project, the PAC shall promptly take all
actions at its sole expense as are necessary to return the Project to the condition existing prior to
the introduction of any such Hazardous Material to the Project, provided that the Owner's
consent to such action shall first be obtained.

Section 15.02. Definition of Hazardous Material.

As used herein, the term "Hazardous Material” means any hazardous or toxic substance,
material or waste which is or becomes regulated by any local governmental authority, the State
of California or the United States Government. The term "Hazardous Material” includes,
without limitation, any material or substance which is (a) defined as a "hazardous waste,"
"extremely hazardous waste™ or "restricted hazardous waste™" under Sections 25115, 25117 or
25122.7 or listed pursuant to Section 25140 of the California Health and Safety Code, Division
20, Chapter 6.5 (hazardous Waste Control Law); (b) defined as a "hazardous substance™ under
Section 25316 of the California Health and Safety Code, Division 2, Chapter 6.8
(Carpenter-Presley-Tanner Hazardous Substance Account Act); (c) defined as a "hazardous
material,” "hazardous substance" or "hazardous waste" under Section 25501 of the California
Health and Safety Code, Division 20, Chapter 6.95 (Hazardous Substances); (d) petroleum; (e)
asbestos; (f) listed under Article 9 and defined as hazardous or extremely hazardous pursuant to
Article 11 of Title 22 of the California Administrative Code, Division 4, Chapter 20; (g)
designated as a "hazardous substance" pursuant to Section 311 of the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act (33 U.S.C. Section 1317); (h) defined as a "hazardous waste" pursuant to Section
1004 of the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 6901, et seq.
(42 U.S.C. Section 6903); or (i) defined as a "hazardous substance™ pursuant to Section 101 of
the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C.
Section 9601, et seq. (42 U.S.C. Section 9601).

ARTICLE XVI
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

The Owner represents and warrants to the PAC that this Agreement has been authorized and
entered into by the Owner in compliance with all applicable laws. The PAC represents and
warrants to the Owner that this Agreement has been authorized and entered into by the PAC in
compliance with all applicable laws.

ARTICLE XVII
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 17.01. California Law Governs.
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
California. The reference in this Agreement to any legislation shall be read as though the words
for any statutory modifications or reenactments thereof or any statutory provisions substituted
therefore, were added to such reference.

Section 17.02. Meaning of Headings.

The section headings of this Agreement are only to assist the parties in reading the Agreement
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and shall have no effect upon its construction or interpretation.
Section 17.03. Damage.

The PAC shall not damage the Project or any part thereof, or permit any acts to be done thereon
in violation of any law or which create a nuisance and shall not operate the Project or any part
thereof for any immoral purpose.

Section 17.04. Assignability.

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective successors and assigns. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, this
Agreement shall not be assigned or assignable by operation of law and in no event shall this
Agreement be an asset of the PAC in any receivership, bankruptcy, insolvency or
reorganization proceeding. Any assignment of this Agreement shall be subject to the provisions
contained in the Loan Agreement and the written consent of Finaneial-SeeurityAssured

Guaranty.

Section 17.05. Partial Invalidity.

If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable to any extent
under any applicable law by a court of competent Jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement
shall not be affected and each remaining term and provision shall be valid and enforceable to
the fullest extent permitted by law. To the extent that the provisions of applicable law may be
waived, they are hereby waived to the end that this Agreement be deemed to be a valid and
binding agreement and enforceable in accordance with its terms.

Section 17.06. Giving of Consent.

Whenever the Owner is required or authorized to give consent or approval to or authorization
of, any act of the PAC, such consent, approval or authorization may be given by such
committee or person as may be designated by the Owner. The action of such committee or
person shall be binding on the parties for whom such action is taken.

Section 17.07. Entire Agreement.

This Agreement, along with any schedules, exhibits, attachments or other documents referred
to, constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between the Owner and the PAC relative to
the operation and control of the Project. This instrument and such exhibits, attachments and
other documents may be amended or revoked only by an instrument in writing signed by both
the Owner and the PAC or their respective successors in interest. The Owner and the PAC agree
that no prior agreement, understanding or representation pertaining to any matter covered or
mentioned in this Agreement shall be effective for any purpose.

Section 17.08. Notices.

All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
personally delivered or sent by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested and postage
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prepaid. If any request, demand or notice is to be given by personal delivery it shall be given as
follows: (a) in the case of the PAC, to the ChairmanPresident of the Board orthe-Presidentof
Directors; or (b) in the case of the Owner, to the ChatrmanMayor or City Manager.

If any request, demand or notice is to be given by mail, it shall be delivered as follows:

If to the Owner:

City of Novato-Firaneing-Authority
900 Sherman Avenue

75 Rowland Way, Suite 200
Novato, CA 94945

Attn: Deputy-Director-of Redevelopment FAX{415)-897-4354City Manager

If to the PAC:
Park Acquisition Corporation of Marin Valley Mobile Country Club
100 Marin Valley Drive
Novato, CA 94949-9716
Attn: President
. : "
: " : X . .

If to Assured Guaranty:

Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp.
31 West 52" Street

New York, NY 1002219
Telephone: (212) 826-0100

Attn: Risk Management Department

Any person or address set forth above may be changed, or other persons added, by giving notice
in accordance with the provisions of this subsection.

Section 17.09. Third-Party Beneficiary.
Finanetal-Seeurity -Assured Guaranty and CLGFA shall be third-party beneficiaries to this

Agreement, entitled to enforce the provisions hereof as if parties hereto. All consensus of
Assured Guaranty required hereunder must be in writing to be effective.

Section 17.10. Conduit Facilitator.

All parties hereto recognize and agreethat—-CLOFAagree that CLGFA is acting in the
transactions contemplated herein solely in a conduit facilitating role to assist the substantive
parties in achieving their goals; CLGFA is not a substantive party to such transaction; and
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CLGFA's agreements and obligations hereunder are solely for the purpose of passing through
funds and substantive agreements and obligations of such substantive parties.

Section 17.11. Limited Obligation.

Under no circumstances shall the City of Novato or the Agency, or their respective officers,
agents, employees or representatives, or the officers, agents, employees or representatives of
the Owner, be liable under this Agreement.

Section 17.12. Non-discrimination.

The PAC covenants by and for itself, its successors and assigns and all persons claiming under
or through it, and this Agreement is made and accepted upon and subject to the condition that,
there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of persons on
account of race, color, creed, sex, physical handicap, disability, national origin, or ancestry in
the operation and control of the Project; provided, however, that the PAC shall be allowed to
maintain the Project as a “Seniors Only Facility” restricting spaces to residents who are 55,
years old or older.

Section 17.13. Amendments.
This Agreement may be amended only by the mutual agreement of the Owner and the PAC,

with the prior written consent of Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, evidenced by a written
amendment duly executed by the Owner and the PAC.

Section 17.14. Execution of Certain Documents.

The Owner hereby authorizes the PAC to enter into and to execute the Deposit Only Account
Agreement on its behalf.

Section 17.15. Execution and Binding Effect.

This Agreement shall not be binding upon the Owner until it has been duly executed by the
Owner.

Section 17.16. Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so
executed and delivered, shall be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute but
one and the same Agreement, and, in making proof of this Agreement, it shall not be necessary
to produce or account for more than one such counterpart.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner has caused this Delegation Agreement to be executed
by its ChairmanMayor, and the PAC has caused this Agreement to be executed by its President,
all as of the ist day of Mareh, 1997 , 2012,
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CITY OF NOVATO-FINANCING-AUTHORH-Y, as Owner

By
.
IJ_allne i at_uela Eklund
By:
Denise Athas, Mayor
Attest:

Sheri Hartz, City Clerk

PARK ACQUISITION CORPORATION OF
MARIN VALLEY MOBILE COUNTRY CLUB

Name Owen V. Haxton Title By:
Michael Holland, President

Attest:

Secretary
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EXHIBIT A
MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

(See separate document)
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EXHIBIT B
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PAC

Without limiting the PAC’s indemnification provided herein, PAC shall take out, maintain and
provide the Owner with certificates and endorsements satisfactory to the City Attorney of the
following policies of insurance during the terms of this Agreement. Certificates of such
insurance shall be filed with the Owner on or before commencement or performance of this
Agreement. The City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required
insurance policies at any time. The certificates of insurance with original endorsements shall
also name Assured Guaranty.

Liability Insurance Coverage

The PAC shall take out and maintain at all times during the life of this agreement Commercial
General Liability Insurance including personal injury and property damage insurance for all
activities of the PAC and its sub-contractors or sub-consultants arising out of or in connection
with this contract, written on a commercial general liability form including, but not limited to,
property damage, blanket contractual, products liability and completed operations, vehicle
coverage and non-owned auto liability covers in an amount no less than $1 million combined
single limit personal injury and property damage for each occurrence.

Each such policy shall be endorsed to name the City its officers, agents, and employees as
additional insureds for all liability arising out of the work performed by or on behalf of the
named insured. The insurance provided shall be primary and no insurance held or owned by the
City shall be called upon to contribute to a loss. The inclusion of more than one insured shall
not operate to impair the rights of one insured against another insured, and the coverages
afforded shall apply as though separate policies had been issued to each insured. The coverage
provided by this policy shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) days prior written notice given
to the Owner and Assured Guaranty.

Directors and Officers Liability Coverage
The PAC shall take out and maintain, at all times during the life of this agreement, Directors
and Officers liability coverage. The amount of the insurance shall be $1,000,000 per accident.

Automobile Liability Insurance Coverage

The PAC agrees to have and maintain for the duration of the Agreement an Automobile
Liability insurance policy insuring the PAC and any current or future employees to an amount
not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) combined single limit per accident for
bodily injury and property damage. At the time the Agreement is entered into the City may
require higher limits depending on the nature of the service being provided by the PAC. Such
determination shall be made by the City’s Risk Manager.

Workers’ Compensation

The PAC shall take out and maintain at all times during the life of this agreement workers’
compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of California for all
employees that PAC may now or hereafter have. The PAC shall require the Property Manager
to have worker’s compensation insurance as outlined here. The amount of said insurance shall
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be $1 million per accident. The PAC certifies that it is aware of the provision of the California
Labor Code which requires every employee to be insured against liability for workers’
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code.
All such policies shall be endorsed with the provision that it will not be cancelled or altered
without first giving 30 days prior written notice to the City. Said Workers’ Compensation
policy shall have the following endorsement: *“All rights of subrogation are hereby waived
against the City, its officers, employees when acting within the scope of their appointment or
employment.”

General Provisions — The PAC shall comply with the following provisions.

1) The City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers and Assured Guaranty are to
be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf
of PAC; products and completed operations of PAC; premises owned or used by PAC; or
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by PAC.

2 The PAC’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the City, its
officers, officials, employees and volunteers in addition to Assured Guaranty. Any insurance
or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be
in excess of PAC’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

3) Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage
provided to the City, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers in addition to Assured
Guaranty.

4) The PAC’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability.

(5) If the PAC utilizes the services of a secondary consultant in the performance of this
Agreement, the PAC shall either provide the required insurance(s) for the type of service being
provided by the secondary consultant or provide evidence acceptable to the Owner and Assured
Guaranty demonstrating that the secondary consultant has in effect the required insurance(s).

All Coverages — Each insurance policy required in this item shall be endorsed to state that
coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, or reduced in coverage or in limits except
after thirty (30) days’ prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been
given to the City. Current certification of such insurance shall be kept on file with the City
Clerk at all times during the term of this Agreement.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions — Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must
be declared to and approved by the Owner. At the option of the Owner, either the insurer shall
reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the City, its officers,
officials, employees and volunteers, or the PAC shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of
losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

Acceptability of Insurers — Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best’s rating of no
less than A:VII.
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EXHIBIT C

MVMCC MATRIX OF ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Attached is a matrix outlines the roles and responsibilities of the Frei Real Estate, the PAC, the City, and Assured Guaranty to provide greater clarity in
the functioning of the Park. The Matrix is a new appendix to the Delegation Agreement proposed to be added in 2012. The formatting has been
accepted to ease the reading of the document.

Frei Real Estate Services

Park Acquisition
Corporation (PAC)

City of Novato

Assured Guaranty

Broad
Description of
Role

Broad
Description of
Responsibilities

OPERATION AND
MANAGEMENT

Frei Real Estate Services, a
professional property
management company, has
been selected by the PAC and
approved by the City to rent,
lease, operate, manage and
maintain the Park in
accordance with the
Management Plan. The
Management Agreement
outlines the scope and duties
for Frei Real Estate with the
Management Plan as an
attachment to the
Management Agreement.

OVERSIGHT OF MANAGER &
RESIDENT ENGAGEMENT

PAC is a non-profit
organization with which the
City has chosen to contract
in the Delegation Agreement
to operate and control the
Project provided that the
PAC is obligated to enter into
a Management Agreement,
which separates the PAC
from the day-to-day
management of the Project
and provides for those duties
to be performed by a
professional property
manager.

OWNER - RESPONSIBLE FOR
FINANCIAL, POLICY AND
CONTRACTUAL COMPLIANCE

City of Novato is the owner of
the Park and holds overall
responsibility, financial control,
and liability except where
portions are transferred to

other parties through contracts.

INSURER OF SENIOR
BONDS

Assured Guaranty provides
insurance on the senior
bonds and has a variety of
specific rights (but not
obligations) relating to bonds
and actions related to the
Park.
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Frei Real Estate Services

Park Acquisition
Corporation (PAC)

City of Novato

Assured Guaranty

CONTRACTS AND PURCHASING

Purchasing &
Contracts

Delegation
Agreement
Section 5.01(c)

Follow administrative outlines
per attachment.

Ensure Frei Real Estate
follows administrative
outlines per attachment.

As a public agency, the City has
different legal requirements.
Attachment outlines
administrative parameters.

No role.

BUDGET - Opera

ting and Capital Plan (Managemen

t Agreement, Section 9 and 10

]

Annual Budget

Prepare, compile and present a

Review and provide

Review proposed budget and

Review proposed budget and

Process draft budget to PAC and feedback on proposed approve with changes if approve with changes if
residents. MVMCC budget prepared necessary. necessary.
Delegation by Frei Real Estate. Hold a
Agreement Submit a recommended budget | public meeting and ensure
Section 7.01 to City and Assured Guaranty resident input.
after PAC and resident input.
Pass forward PAC and resident
input along with proposed
budget.
Mid-Year Frei Real Estate prepares PAC reviews mid-year City reviews and approves, Reviews and approves,

Budget Process

Management
Agreement
Section 9(b)

mid-year budget and gains input
from PAC and residents. All
comments are forwarded to
City. Frei Real Estate will make
any reasonable changes to the
mid-year budget required by

City or Assured Guaranty.

budget report. PAC may
approve or disapprove.

disapproves or requires
changes to the mid-year budget
report.

disapproves or requires
changes to the mid-year
budget report.
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Frei Real Estate Services Park Acquisition City of Novato Assured Guaranty
Corporation (PAC)
LEGAL ISSUES
Litigation Frei Real Estate can initiate Monitor litigation actions by | Communicate any concerns or | Has right to be informed as

[Park Rules and
Unpaid Rent]

Management
Agreement
Section 2(d)

Litigation
[All Other
Litigation]

Management
Agreement
Section 2(d)

litigation to enforce park rules
and collect unpaid rents. In
these instances, Frei shall
inform PAC, the City and the
City’s legal counsel via written
email or letter.

All other litigation concerning
the Park and proposed to be
initiated on behalf of or the
Project or Owner shall require
the advance authorization and
consent of City.

Frei. Communicate
concerns or issues to Frei
and City if necessary.

PAC makes
recommendations
regarding all other litigation
to City.

issues when litigation is
initiated based on
communication from Frei.
Monitor feedback or
communication from PAC or
Frei as necessary.

City is final decision making
authority regarding all other
litigation and will inform
Assured Guaranty if impacts
bonds or project financing.

applicable.

RESIDENT ISSUES

AND OPERATIONS

Complaints and
Requests for
Service —
Resident Input
Form (RIF)

Management
Agreement
Section 2(e)

Frei Real Estate shall receive
requests for service or
complaints of residents at the
Park through the use of a
Resident Input Form. The
Resident Input Form shall
provide information on the
resident providing the input,
the nature of the complaint,
service request or concern. A
copy of the Resident Input Form
is provided, if requested, to the
PAC, City, Assured Guaranty,
Trustee, and Home Owners

Monitor responsiveness and
appropriateness of Frei Real
Estate Services customer
service and resolution of
Resident Input Form issues
by monitoring monthly RIF
report.

Concerns or issues shall be
communicated to Al Frei
directly and not local
management staff.

Support the internal
administrative process for
residents’ issues and concerns
by not becoming involved in
individual issues. The City
may take comments/concerns
and provide direction to PAC
and Frei Real Estate when
there multiple complaints of
the same nature or
performance concerns by Frei
or PAC.

May inspect the Resident Input
Forms upon request.

Has right to be informed as
applicable.
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League.

Frei Real Estate will provide an
initial response to the resident
within three (3) business days.
The initial response shall either
substantively respond to the
complaint, request additional
information or provide a date to
the complaining resident by
which a substantive response
will be provided.

Frei Real Estate shall maintain a
log of all RIF’s submitted and
their status, actions, and
outcomes. All such complaints
shall be responded to by Frei
Real Estate in a prudent
manner, using Frei’s
professional judgment. Frei
Real Estate shall not delegate
this duty to the PAC or any
other person, firm or
organization other than
employees of Contractor.
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Frei Real Estate Services

Park Acquisition Corporation
(PAC)

City of Novato

Assured Guaranty

Park Rules and
Regulations

State Law

Frei Real Estate may propose
an amendment in the park’s
rules and regulations.
Information, feedback and
comments may come from
residents, PAC, HOL, or City.

Note: State law has
requirements for park rules.
A proposed change to the
Rules requires a written
notice mailed to all residents
with the written proposed
amendment and an invitation
to a park meeting to discuss
the rule change with at least
10 day notice before the
meeting and compliance with
State law (California Civil
Code Section 798.25).

PAC shall ensure all state
laws are followed and shall
gain permission of City
before modifying any park
rules or regulations.

City will be noticed by PAC
about proposed changes to park
rules and regulations and much
approve any changes or
amendments.

Has right to be informed if
requested as applicable.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED

MARIN VALLEY MOBILE COUNTRY CLUB PARK

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
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For:
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AMENDED AND RESTATED MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

This Management Agreement (this "Agreement"), dated as of November 1, 1997, is
between Park Acquisition Corporation of Marin Valley Mobile Country Club, a nonprofit
mutual benefit corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California
(the "PAC™), and Frei Real Estate Services (the "Contractor”). The PAC is obligated to enter
into a management agreement with respect to a 315-space mobile home park located in the City
of Novato, California, known as the Marin Valley Mobile Country Club (the "Project"),
pursuant to the terms of a Delegation Agreement dated as of March 1, 1997 (the "Original
Delegation Agreement~);") and as amended pursuant to the Restated and Amended Delegation
Agreement dated as of March 31, 20121, between the PAC and the City of Novato-Firaneing
Autherity, as owner of the Project (the "Owner"). Terms used in this Agreement have the
meanings set forth in Section 1, unless the context requires otherwise.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant-te the NFA and the PAC entered into the Marin Valley Mobile
Country Club Park Delegation Agreement;-the-PAC-has as of March 1, 1997 (the “Original
Delegation Agreement) in order to establish and declare the terms and conditions upon which
the PAC would perform certain responsibititiesobligations and duties with respect to the
Project-en-behalfof; and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to the Original Delegation Agreement PAC was obligated to
enter into a Management Agreement with a professional management company approved by
the Owner:-and in a form as attached to the Original Delegation Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in 1997, the PAC issued a Request for Proposal and received complete and
responsive proposals from five firms_to perform management services with respect to the

Project; and

WHEREAS, the PAC thoroughly evaluated the various proposals and, based on several
evaluation criteria, selected Storz Management Company, Inc. ("Storz") as the initial manager
of the Project, but hasthereafter elected to terminate the management agreement with Storz and
enter into thisa Management Agreement with-the Contractor; and

WHEREAS, theon November 1, 1997, PAC wishes-to-appeint-the-and Contractor
entered into a Management Agreement (“Original Management Agreement”) and Contractor
was appointed to operate and manage the Project pursuant tethereto; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 4.02 of the Original Delegation Agreement, the
Original Delegation Agreement and therefore the Original Management Agreement was
subject to periodic renegotiation, with the first of such renegotiation periods occurring on
October 1, 2010; and

WHEREAS, on March , 2011, the NFA transferred ownership of the Project to the
City of Novato and the NFA and the City of Novato entered into an Assignment and
Assumption Agreement dated, March , 2011, whereby the City of Novato assumed the
obligations and benefits of the Original Delegation Agreement and Original Management
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Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in order to satisfy the periodic renegotiation obligations of Section 4.02 of
the Original Delegation Agreement, amend the requirements thereof and of the Original
Management Agreement and to continue to establish and declare the terms and conditions upon
which the Contractor will manage the Project, the Contractor and PAC wish to enter into this
Restated and Amended Management (“Agreement;”); and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Contractor and the PAC, for and in consideration of the
mutual promises and agreements herein contained do agree as follows:

Section 1. Definitions and Construction.

(@) The following terms used herein shall have the following meanings unless the
context in which they are used clearly requires otherwise.

"Agreement” means this Management Agreement, dated as of Nevember—1;
1997 March 31, 2012, between the Contractor and the PAC, as it may be
supplemented or amended from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof.

"Assured Guaranty" means Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp.; (formerly known
as Financial Security Assurance Inc.,) and any successors or assigns thereto.

"Bond Counsel™ means any attorney or firm of attorneys of nationally recognized
expertise with respect to legal matters relating to obligations the interest on which
is excludable from gross income pursuant to Section 103 of the Code.

"Bonds" shall mean any of the $15,485,000 Senior Revenue Bonds, Series 1997A
(Marin Valley Mobile Country Club Park Acquisition), Issued for the Benefit of the
Novato Financing Authority (California), Facilitated by the California Local
Government Finance Authority, and the $1,585,000 Subordinate Revenue Bonds,
Series 1997B (Marin Valley Mobile Country Club Park Acquisition), Issued for the
Benefit of the Novato Financing Authority (California), Facilitated by the
California Local Government Finance Authority.

"Business Day" means any day other than (a) a Saturday or Sunday, (b) a day on
which (i) banking institutions in the City of New York, New York, or in San
Francisco, California, are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to be
closed or (ii) the New York Stock Exchange is authorized or obligated by law or
executive order to be closed or (c) with respect to actions required to be taken by
the Owner only, a day on which the offices of the City of Novato are closed to the
public.

"Capital Plan” means the plan of capital expenditures described in Section 10
hereof and required to be prepared by the Owner or the PAC on behalf of the Owner
pursuant to Section 6.02 of the Loan Agreement.

"City" means the City of Novato, a municipal corporation duly organized and
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existing under the laws of the State of California.

"CLGFA" means the California Local Government Finance Authority, and its
successors and permitted assigns.

"Code™" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date of
delivery of the Bonds, and any successor statute, together with corresponding and
applicable final, or temporary regulations and revenue rulings issued or amended
with respect thereto by the Treasury Department or Internal Revenue Service of the
United States.

"Deposit Only Account™ shall mean the Deposit Only Account established pursuant
to the Deposit Only Agreement; and any successor account of which the Contractor
receives written notice from Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty.

"Deposit Only Agreement” means the Amended and Restated Deposit Only
Account Agreement, or any substitute agreement, in form and substance approved

by Finaneial-SecurityAssured Guaranty.

"Effective Date" means -March 310¢tober15,-20121997,

"Fiscal Year" means the twelve-month period commencing July 1 and ending on
June 30 of the succeeding calendar year.

"Housing Law" means Section 34312 of the Health and Safety Code of the State of
California, as now in effect and as it may be amended.

"Indenture™ means the Trust Indenture, dated as of March 1, 1997, between CLGFA
and the Trustee, as the same may be amended from time to time in accordance with
its terms.

"Loan Agreement” means the Loan Agreement dated as of March 1, 1997, among
the PAC, the Owner and CLGFA, as the same may be amended from time to time in
accordance with its terms.

"Lower Income Residents” has the meaning given to such term pursuant to the
Pledge Agreement.

"Lower Income Spaces™ has the meaning given to such term pursuant to the Pledge
Agreement.

"Management Fee" means the management fee payable pursuant to Subsection
11(a) hereof.
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"Management Plan" means Exhibit A to this Agreement.

"Moderate Income Residents” has the meaning given to such term pursuant to the
Pledge Agreement.

"Moderate Income Spaces” has the meaning given to such term pursuant to the
Pledge Agreement.

"Monthly Reports” means the reports described in Section 7 of the Management
Plan.

"Mortgage" shall have the meaning provided in the Indenture.

"Mortgage Loan Documents™ shall have the meaning provided in the Indenture.
"NOI" has the meaning set forth in the Indenture.

"Operating Budget" shall have the meaning provided in Section 9 hereof.

"Operation and Maintenance Account™ means the account established pursuant to
Section 3 of the Management Plan.

"Owner" means the City of Novato—Finrancing—Autherity, its successors and
permitted assigns.

"Owner Representative” means the ChairMayor of the Owner or any person
designated in writing by the ChairMayor to act on behalf of the Owner under or with
respect to this Agreement.

"PAC" means the Park Acquisition Corporation of Marin Valley Mobile Country
Club, its successors and assigns.

"PAC Representative” means the President of the PAC or any person designated in
writing by the President to act on behalf of the PAC under or with respect to this
Agreement.

"Pledge Agreement" means the Housing Assistance Pledge Agreement and
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants dated as of March 1, 1997, by and among the
PAC, the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Novato and the Owner.

"Project” means the mobile home park known as the Marin Valley Mobile Country
Club located on the land described on Exhibit A to the Loan Agreement, including
the real property described in such Exhibit A, the Improvements (as defined in the
Indenture) and any property acquired in substitution for, as a renewal or
replacement of or as a modification or improvement to all or any part of such real
property or Improvements.

"Redevelopment Law" means Section 33334.2 of the Health and Safety Code of the
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State of California, as now in effect or hereafter amended.

"Revenues"” means (i) all rents, income, receipts, utility charges and other revenues
arising from the operation of the Project, including but not limited to the rents, late
charges, penalties, security deposits and other amounts payable to the Contractor on
behalf of the Owner by Project residents, or from others for services provided in
connection with, or for the use of the Project or any portion thereof and (ii) all
non-operating revenues of the Project.

"Senior Debt Service Coverage Ratio” shall have the meaning provided in the
Indenture.

"Trigger Event" shall have the meaning provided in the Indenture.

"Trustee" means First Trust of California, National Association, its successors and
assigns.

"Very Low Income Residents"” has the meaning given to such term pursuant to the
Pledge Agreement.

"Very Low Income Spaces" has the meaning given to such term pursuant to the
Pledge Agreement.

(b) Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, words of the masculine, feminine or
neuter gender shall be construed to include each other gender when appropriate and
words of the singular number shall be construed to include the plural number and
vice versa, when appropriate. All the terms or provisions hereof shall be construed
to effectuate the purposes set forth in this Agreement and to sustain the validity
hereof.

(c) The captions of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only, and the
words contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.

(d) All exhibits to this Agreement constitute a part of this Agreement.

Section 2. Appointment; General Duties.

The PAC hereby appoints the Contractor the exclusive agent of the Owner and the PAC, for the
term specified herein, to rent, lease, operate, manage and maintain the Project, including any
mobile homes situated at the Project which are owned or leased, or any hereinafter owned or
leased, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. The Contractor hereby
accepts such appointment.

The PAC and the Contractor hereby agree as follows:

(a) Generally. The Contractor shall manage and operate the Project in accordance with
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the Management Plan, as an independent contractor, for the period and upon the
terms herein provided, and agrees to furnish the services of its organization for the
operation and management of the Project, according to generally accepted
procedures and practices usual and customary to management of a mobile home
park. The Contractor, in the conduct of its activities hereunder, shall take no action,
and shall not suffer or permit any resident of space within the Project to take any
action, which would cause the loss or impairment of the exclusion from gross
income for federal income tax purposes of interest paid with respect to the Bonds.
Pursuant to the terms of the Delegation Agreement, Owner has granted to PAC,
subject to the restrictions stated in the Delegation Agreement and the rights of
Owner, the right to operate and control the Project. Pursuant to the Delegation
Agreement and the Management Plan, PAC is te-be-separated from the day-to-day
management of the Project and those duties are to be performed by Contractor in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

(b) Compliance With Law. The Contractor and its subcontractors, agents and
employees shall operate the Project in compliance with all applicable provisions of
federal, state and local law, including, but not limited to, the Mobile Home
Residency Law (California Civile Code, Section 18060-798 et. seq.), Title 25 of the
California Administrative Code and Ordinance No. 1341 of the City of Novato and
any other applicable laws, regulations and ordinances now in effect or hereinafter
enacted, and to maintain any and all records necessary and proper to show
compliance therewith.

(c) Collection of Revenues. The Contractor shall collect all Revenues and other charges
which at any time are due or become due from any resident of the Project occupying
space in the Project, or from others for services provided in connection with, or for
the use of the Project or any portion thereof. All Revenues shall be the property of
the Owner, subject to the pledge and first lien of the Trustee, and, while in the
custody of the Contractor, shall be held by the Contractor in trust, separate and apart
from all other funds and accounts of the Contractor, the PAC and the Owner, as the
Owner's agent hereunder.

The Contractor shall deposit any Revenues collected with respect to the Project,
other than security deposits, (i) received prior to 2:00 p.m., Pacific standard time,
into the Deposit Only Account on the date of receipt by the Contractor, unless such
day is not a Business Day, in which case such funds will be deposited on the next
Business Day and (ii) received after 2:00 p.m., Pacific standard time, into the
Deposit Only Account on the first day immediately succeeding the date of receipt
by the Contractor. The PAC will give the Contractor a copy of the Deposit Only
Agreement on the Effective Date.

Any security deposits collected by the Contractor will be deposited in a separate
account, established for such deposits.

(d) Cooperation in Litigation. The Contractor shall assist the PAC, Financial
SeeurityAssured Guaranty, the Trustee, the Owner, their legal counsel or their
insurance carriers, as applicable, in any ongoing litigation or litigation hereafter
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filed by any resident, potential resident or any other person(s) related to the
ownership or operation of the Project. The PAC shall assist the Contractor, its legal
counsel or its insurance carrier in any ongoing litigation or litigation filed against
the Contractor relating to the maintenance, operation or management of the Project,
the collection of rents or other Revenues or the enforcement of leases, rental
agreements or other contracts respecting the Project._The Contractor shall have the
right, with prior written notice to Owner, Owner’s Counsel and PAC, to initiate
litigation on behalf of the Project, in the name of Contractor for the purpose of
collection of unpaid rents within the Project or enforcement of Park rules. All other
litigation concerning the Project and proposed to be initiated on behalf of or the
Project or Owner or relating in any way to the Project shall require the advance
authorization and consent of Owner, it being expressly understood that Owner shall
retain the sole right to determine the initiation, progress and settlement of any such

litigation.

{e)(e) Processing SemplaintsRequests for Service and Complaints. The Contractor
shall receive requests for service and complaints of residents of the Project
andthrough the use of a “Resident Input Form”. The Resident Input Form shall
provide information on the resident providing the input, the nature of the
request/complaint -or concern and any person(s) to be contacted by the Contractor
relating to information or resolution of the request/complaint, or concern.
Contractor shall provide an initial response to the Resident Input Form within 3
business days. Said initial response shall either substantively respond to the
request/complaint, request additional information or provide a date to the
complaining-resident by which a substantive response will be provided. All such
requests/complaints shall be responded to by Contractor in a prudent manner, using
the Contractor’s own professional judgment and subject to the limitations imposed
by or pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall not delegate this duty to the PAC
or any other person, firm or organization other than employees of Contractor. The
Contractor agrees to maintain copies of any such requests/complaints received-as
weH-as, the responses to same and any and all correspondence from the Contractor
onbehalfofthe PAC-relating thereto and shall upon request provide copies thereof
to-PAC, -and-Owner, -and-make-them-avatlable for-the PAC's-the-Owner's,the
Trustee's,-and Finaneial-Security'sAssured Guaranty, and Home Owners League of

MVMCC. ‘s-inspection.

(f) Contractor agrees that Contractor will use the Project website established by the
PAC in order to communicate information regarding the activities of Contractor
within the Project to the tenants of the Project and in this regard will post an updates
reqularly-neless-freguently-than-monthly. Contractor will further establish reqular
office_hours within the Project, no less frequently than gquarterly, during which
tenants, PAC and Owner may meet with Mr. Al Frei or with the approval of Owner
and PAC, his designee, to discuss issues of concern.

Section 3. Powers and Duties of the Contractor.

The PAC hereby gives the Contractor the following powers and duties in connection with the
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operation of the Project and in accordance with this Agreement.

(a) Generally. The Contractor shall enter into such agreements, contracts and
arrangements as it may deem necessary for the operation of the Project, consistent
with the terms and conditions as set forth herein. Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, the Contractor shall have the right and duty (i) to sign, renew, amend,
enforce, terminate and/or cancel leases and/or rental agreements for the Project or
any portion hereof, subject to the right of the Owner and PAC to approve the form of
such leases and agreements to collect rents, security deposits or' other charges and
expenses due or to become and to give receipts therefor; (ii) to sign and serve in the
name of the-OwnerContractor such notices as are appropriate to, with written notice
to the Owner Representative, institute and prosecute actions to evict residents of the
Project and/or to recover rents and other Revenues due and enforce leases and rental
agreements, in the name of the Contractor-er—in-the-name-ef-the-Owner; and (iii)
when expedient, to settle, compromise and release such actions or suits or reinstate
such tenancies. The Contractor shall fairly and uniformly enforce the rules and
regulations of the Project as they now exist or as hereinafter may be amended. The
Contractor shall, in accordance with standards of prudent business practice, enforce
the provisions of all leases and rental agreements for spaces within the Project.

The Contractor shall have the right and duty to hire attorneys, accountants and other
professionals selected with due care to assist in the performance of its duties
hereunder. None of the work or services to be performed hereunder shall be assigned,
delegated or subcontracted to third parties without the prior written approval of the
PAC, the Owner and Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty. Copies of all third-party
contracts for attorney, accountant or other professionals or for assignment of any of
the duties hereunder to be performed by Contractor shall be submitted to the PAC,
the Owner and Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty for approval at least 10 Business
Days prior to the proposed effective date. If the PAC, the Owner and Firancial
Seeurity-Assured Guaranty approve any such assignment, delegation or subcontract,
the subcontractors, assignees or delegates shall be deemed to be employees of the
Contractor, and the Contractor shall be responsible for their performance and any
liabilities attaching to their actions or omissions._Contracts for repairs or other
improvements to the Project shall be addressed in accordance with sub-sections (b)

and (e) below.

(b) Repairs. The Contractor shall have the obligation to make, or cause to be made, and
supervise repairs and decorations to the Project in accordance with the Operating
Budget and the Capital Plan, or as otherwise approved by the PAC, the Owner and
Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, and shall have the right to purchase supplies
and pay all bills therefor, subject in aII respects to the prOV|5|ons of thls Agreement

procedure for contractlnq for said repairs shall be as set forth in Exhlblt B, attached

hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

(c) Utilities and Services. The Contractor shall have the right to make contracts, in the
capacity of agent for the Owner and in the Owner's name, for electricity, natural gas,
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fuel, water, telephone, cable TV, trash or rubbish hauling, janitorial, security, pool
maintenance or servicing, landscaping and other utilities and/or services or such of
them as the Contractor shall deem advisable and as required by the rental/lease
agreements with the residents of the Project and subject to the prior written approval
of Owner. Copies of all proposed contracts shall be forwarded to Owner in advance
and shall meet the requirements of Owner regarding insurance coverage and
indemnification of Owner.

(d) Employees. The Contractor shall have the right to hire, discharge and supervise all
labor required for the operation of the Project. All such employees shall be the
employees of the Contractor and shall be adequately bonded, if required by the PAC
or Owner in an amount satisfactory to the PAC and Owner. All such employees shall
be compensated in accordance with provisions of this Agreement. Such employees
shall be used for the maintenance and operation of the Project only.

(e) Modifications to Project. Subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement, the
Contractor shall make additions, alterations, modifications and improvements to the
Project in accordance with the Capital Plan or as otherwise approved in writing by
the PAC, the Owner and Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty. The procedure for
contracting for said additions, alterations, modifications and improvements shall be
as set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Such
additions, alterations, modifications and improvements, or any removal thereof, shall
not in any way damage the Project, decrease the level of service received by Project
residents or cause the Project to be used for purposes other than those authorized
under the provisions of state and federal law, including the Code (including sections
governing the tax-exempt status of the Bonds), and the Mortgage Loan Documents.
The Project, upon completion of any additions, alterations, modifications and
improvements, shall be of a value which is not less than the value thereof
immediately prior to the making of such additions, modifications and improvements.

(F) Subject to Financial Considerations. All decisions by the Contractor with respect to
any contract, agreement or other arrangement for the setting of rents or charges for
the use by any resident of space in the Project shall be consistent with the
requirement of the Owner to repay its financial obligations with respect to the Project
and the Bonds from the Revenues paid to the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of
this Agreement. Upon written or oral notice from the PAC Representative, the
Owner or Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty to the Contractor stating that an
action, which the Contractor proposes to take or refrain from taking, could have the
effect of reducing Revenues below the amount required by the Owner to meet its
obligations under the Mortgage Loan Documents, the Contractor shall comply with
all directions given to it by the Owner or Financial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, as
applicable, as consented to by the Owner or Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, as
applicable, with respect to such action.

Section 4. Term.

The initial term of the appointment of the Contractor (the "Initial Term™) shall be for the period
| beginning on the Effective Date and ending on the 30th31st day of Jure,1998.December 2012.
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OnJanulary 1, 49982013 and each anniversary thereof, this Agreement will be extended for an
additional term (each such term, a "Subsequent Term") consisting of the next 12 consecutive
months, unless (a) an Event of Default exists under this Agreement, (b) a Trigger Event exists,
(c) the Contractor or (with the consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, or at the
direction, of Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty or Owner [with the consent of Assured
Guaranty]), the PAC gives written notice to each other party hereto and to the Trustee and Final
——Seeurity-Assured Guaranty that it does not intend to extend the term of this Agreement
or (d) the parties hereto and the Owner are unable to reach an agreement as set forth in this
Section 4.

On October-December 1, 20162, and on October 1, 26252017, this Agreement shall be
subject to review by both parties hereto and by the Owner. The parties agree to meet together
with the Owner at mutually agreeable times for the review and, if necessary, renegotiate one or
more of the terms hereof. If the parties and the Owner agree to modifications of this Agreement,
with the prior written consent of Firanetal-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty such modifications shall
be incorporated herein by amendment as hereinafter provided, such amendments to become
effective on the date stipulated therein. In the event the parties and the Owner do not agree to
modifications of this Agreement, this Agreement shall continue in effect without modifications
until a replacement property manager is retained by the PAC, with the prior written consent of
Finaneial—SeeurityOwner and Assured Guaranty, with respect to the Project; provided,
however, that if a replacement manager has not been retained within six months following the
commencement of such renegotiations Finaneial-SeeurityOwner, with the consent of -Assured
Guaranty shall have the right to appoint a replacement property manager. If an Event of Default
or a Trigger Event exists, this Agreement may not be extended for a Subsequent Term without
prior written consent of Firanetal-SeeurityOwner and Assured Guaranty, such consent to be in
itsthe sole discretion of each. This paragraph of Section 4 may be amended in accordance with
Section 24 herein only upon the delivery of an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such
amendment shall not affect the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from the gross income of
the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes.

Either the—PAC—or—the—Owner, with the prior written consent of Firancial
SecurityAssured Guaranty, the PAC with the prior written consent of Owner and Assured
Guaranty, or the Contractor may terminate this Agreement for any reason by giving 30-60 days'
prior written notice to the other party hereto, Firanetal-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, the Owner
and the Trustee. In addition, if the Delegation Agreement is terminated, the Owner shall assume
all of the rights, duties and obligations of the PAC contained herein.

Section 5. Very Low Income Residents, Lower Income Residents and Moderate Income
Residents.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Pledge Agreement, the Housing Law and the
Redevelopment Law, the Contractor hereby covenants as follows:

(a) Rent to Very Low Income Residents, Lower Income Residents or Moderate Income
Residents. The Contractor has reviewed a copy of the Pledge Agreement. The
Contractor will comply with the provisions thereof relating to the renting of Very
Low Income Spaces to Very Low Income Residents, Lower Income Spaces to Lower
Income Residents and Moderate Income Spaces to Moderate Income Residents.
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(b) No Discrimination. The Contractor will not give preference to any particular class or

group of persons in renting the mobile home sites in the Project, except to the extent
that sites are Very Low Income Spaces, Lower Income Spaces or Moderate Income
Spaces and except to the extent that the Project continues to be maintained as a
"Seniors Only Facility" which rents sites solely to persons who are 55 years old or
older. Residents occupying Very Low Income Spaces, Lower Income Spaces and
Moderate Income Spaces will have equal access to and enjoyments of all common
facilities of the Project as other residents. Subject to the first sentence of this
Subsection (b), all of the mobile home sites in the Project shall be leased or rented, or
held available for lease or rental, to the general public. In the performance of its
obligations under this Agreement, the Contractor will comply with the provisions of
any federal, state or local law prohibiting discrimination in housing on the grounds
of, but not limited to, race, color, sex, creed or national origin, including, but not
limited to, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Public Law 88-352, 78 Stat. 241),
regulations issued pursuant to Executive Order 11063; Title VIII of the 1968 Civil
Rights Act; and the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990.

(c) Certificate of Resident Eligibility. The Contractor will obtain and maintain on file

from each Very Low Income Resident, Lower Income Resident and Moderate
Income Resident, a certification of resident eligibility in a form approved by the PAC
Representative, consistent with the Pledge Agreement._ A copy of said certificates
shall be provided to Owner.

(d) Maintenance of Records. The Contractor will maintain complete and accurate

records pertaining to the Very Low Income Spaces, Lower Income Spaces and
Moderate Income Spaces and will permit the PAC Representative, the Owner, the
Trustee and Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty to inspect the books and records of
the Contractor pertaining to the incomes of Very Low Income Residents, Lower
Income Residents and Moderate Income Residents of the Project._ Contractor will
submit copies of such records to Owner, without request, no less often than quarterly.

(e) Certificate of Compliance. The Contractor will prepare and submit to the PAC,

(f)

Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, the Trustee, the Agency and the Owner no later
than the thirty-first day of January of each year during the term of this Agreement a
Certificate of Continuing Program Compliance in substantially the form attached to
the Pledge Agreement as Appendix B, commencing January 31, 1998, and executed
by the PAC.

Rental Assistance. The Contractor shall have the right to provide a rental assistance
program for the benefit of any resident in the Project under qualifications standards
which are consistent with Section 8 of the United States Housing Act of 1937, as
approved by the PAC, provided that such rental assistance program is consistent with
the requirements of the preceding paragraph (a)._Contractor further may administrate
a rental assistance program with funds other than project funds to provide temporary
assistance to tenants in the Project on an as needed basis. The Contractor shall
provide a summary (without identification of recipient) of the use of funds to PAC on
an annual basis.
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| Section 6. Rental Agreements.

(a) The Contractor shall use best efforts to secure and/or retain residents for the Project.

The Contractor shall rent the spaces in the Project pursuant to a rental schedule, a
form of rent agreement, a form of rules and regulations and general guidelines
approved by the Owner and PAC, which shall incorporate the requirements imposed
on the Project by the Pledge Agreement. Any necessary advertising to rent or lease
spaces in the Project shall be done in the name of the Project out of funds available
pursuant to the Operating Budget. The PAC-Representative, with the consent of
Owner shall have the right to revise the form of rental agreements from time to time
during the term of this Agreement, upon written notice to the Contractor. As long as
any Bonds are Outstanding (as defined in the Indenture), each rental agreement
(written or oral) executed after the Effective Date shall direct the tenant to make all
rent checks payable to the Trustee. On or prior to the Effective Date, all tenants then
living in the Project shall be directed to make rent checks payable to the Trustee.

(b) Each resident of the Project on the Effective Date of this Agreement shall have the

right to remain in occupancy under the existing terms and conditions of such
resident’s current lease or rental agreement, as modified in order to comply with the
restrictions contained in the Pledge Agreement.

(c) Upon the expiration or termination of any rental agreement for any reason

whatsoever, the subsequent or renewal resident shall be required to enter into a new
rental agreement in a form approved by the Owner and PAC-Representative.

(d) Any rental agreement shall specify that it is subject and subordinate to the Bonds and

the lien of the Mortgage.

| Section 7. Maintenance and Assessment Costs.

(a) The Contractor shall perform or cause to be performed all necessary repairs and

maintenance of the Project and the Contractor shall pay, or cause to be paid, from
Revenues (as provided in Section 11(b)) charges for all utility and other services
supplied to the Project, costs of the repair and replacement of Project facilities or
equipment used in the operation of the Project, all assessments of any type or nature,
if any, charged to the Owner or to the PAC on the Owner's behalf or the Contractor on
account of the ownership or operation of the Project or the respective interests or
estates therein; provided that with respect to special assessments or other government
charges that may lawfully be paid in installments over a period of years, the
Contractor shall be obligated to pay only such installments as are required to be paid
as and when the same become due.

The Contractor shall promptly deliver to the Trustee copies of invoices or statements
for all insurance premiums required pursuant to Section 6.06 of the Loan Agreement
(and Section 8(d) hereof) and assessments due with respect to the Project at least 10
days prior to the due date for such premiums or assessments, together with a
requisition to the Trustee specifying the amount to be paid, the payee and the date
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such amount is due, so that the Trustee may pay such premiums or assessments in a
timely manner.

(b) The Contractor may, with the prior written consent of the PAC, the Owner and
Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, contest, in good faith, any such assessments,
utility and other charges, and, in the event of any such contest, may permit the taxes,
assessments or other charges so contested to remain unpaid during the period of such
contest and any appeal therefrom unless the PAC or Finanetal-Seeurity-Assured
Guaranty shall notify the Contractor that, in its opinion, by nonpayment of any such
items, the interest of the Owner in the Project will be materially endangered or the
Project or any part thereof will be subject to loss or forfeiture, in which event the
Contractor shall promptly pay such taxes, assessments or charges out of Revenues as
hereinafter specified.

| Section 8. Hold Harmless and Insurance.

(a) The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the PAC, the Owner, the

| Trustee, CLGFA, Financial-Security-Assured Guaranty and their officers, officials

and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses including

attorney fees arising out of the performance of its obligations described herein, by the

Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of

them, except where caused by the active negligence, sole negligence or willful
misconduct of the PAC.

(b) Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Contractor shall, at its expense,
procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement insurance against claims
against the Project for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise
from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor,
its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors excluding Course of
Construction insurance. Upon the effective date of a subcontract, the Contractor shall
require that subcontractors procure and maintain for the duration of any subcontract
insurance against claims against the Project for injuries to persons or damages to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work
described in the subcontract including Course of Construction insurance.

(1) Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as broad
as:
(1) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability
coverage (occurrence form CG 0001).

2 Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (ed. 1/87)
covering Automobile Liability, code 1 (any auto).

3) Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of
California and Employer's Liability Insurance.

Page 13



(i) Minimum Limits of Insurance.

(1) General Liability: $22,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal
injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability or other form
with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit shall
apply separately to the Project or the general aggregate limit shall be twice
the required occurrence limit.

(2) Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage, Insurance Services Office form number CA 0001 (ed. 1/87)
covering Automobile Liability, code 1 (any auto).

(3) Employer's Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

(iii) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions

| must be declared to and approved by the Owner and PAC. At the option of the Owner and/or
PAC, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as
respects the Owner, PAC, itsand their respective officers, officials, employees and volunteers
or the Contractor or subcontractor shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the Owner
and PAC guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and
defense expenses.

(iv) Other Insurance Provisions. The general liability and automobile liability policies

are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1) Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state
that coverage shall not be canceled by either party, except after 30 days' prior written
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the Owner and PAC.

(2 Course of Construction policies shall contain the following provisions:
the Owner shall be named as loss payee and the insurer shall waive all rights of
subrogation against the Owner.

(v) Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current

A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII.

(wii)

(vi)  Verification of Coverage. The Contractor or subcontractors shall furnish the
4 Owner and PAC with original certificates and amendatory endorsement
effecting coverage required by this clause. The endorsement should be on forms
provided by the RPACOwner or on other than the RAS'sOwner's forms, provided those
endorsements or policies conform to the requirements. All certificates and
endorsements are to be received and approved by the Owner and PAC before work
commences. The Owner and PAC reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements effecting the coverage
required by these specifications at any time.

(vii)  Subcontractors. The Contractor shall furnish separate certificates and
endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject

to all of the requirements stated herein.

Page 14



(viii)  The Owner, PAC and Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty shall be named
additional insureds.

(c) The Contractor shall cause all employees and officers of the Contractor who handle
or are responsible for the safekeeping of any rents or other moneys of the Owner to be covered
by an Employee Crime and Dishonesty Policy, naming the Owner, Trustee and Financial
Seeurity-Assured Guaranty as beneficiaries, in an amount not less than the amount of the
maximum monthly gross receipts from the Project, as estimated in good faith by the PAC;
nitiathy-$175,000.0wner. Any such policy shall insure the Owner against losses from forgery,
theft, embezzlement and fraud of employees and officers of the Contractor. Upen+reguest,the

Contractor-shall-provide—copiesCopies of any such Employee Crime and Dishonesty Policy
shall be provided to Owner and upon request, to the Trustee and to Finaneial-SeeurityAssured

Guaranty.

(d) The Contractor shall maintain or cause to be maintained all policies of
insurance as required pursuant to Section 6.06 of the Loan Agreement.

(e) The PAC may, with the consent of the Owner and Firaneial-SecurityAssured
Guaranty, from time to time amend the insurance coverages required to be maintained
according to the terms of Section 8(b). Upon receipt of written notice of any such amendment,
the Contractor shall promptly comply with such requirements.

Section 9. Financial Management.

() On or before the Effective Date, and on or before April 1 during the Initial Term and
each Subsequent Term, the Contractor will submit to the PAC and the Owner for
approval a proposed budget (the "Operating Budget") of monthly operating
expenses to be incurred in connection with operation of the Project for the
succeeding Fiscal Year, including expenses described in Section 6 of the
Management Plan. The PAC Governing Board may review, approve, make
reasonable amendments or disapprove the Operating Budget prior to April 25. The
Operating Budget shall also be made available for inspection by Project residents
and members of the public- prior to April 28 and the Contractor, in conjunction with
the PAC shall hold an annual public meeting on the budget prior to the submission
thereof to the Owner. Project residents and members of the public may, on or prior
to April 28, submit comments to the Contractor and the PAC, which the Contractor
will promptly forward to the Owner-and-the-Agenecy-. After the time for public
review and comment has ended, but no later than May 1, the Contractor will submit
the proposed Operating Budget including any proposed changes to Finaneial
Seeurity-Assured Guaranty and the Owner. Each Operating Budget shall include a
statement of assumptions upon which the Operating Budget is based.

Provided that a proposed Operating Budget is submitted to Financial-Security
Assured Guaranty and the Owner together with a certificate stating that Finaneial
Seeurity—Assured Guaranty and the Owner have 45 days after receipt to give
comments on the Operating Budget or it shall be assumed to be approved by
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Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty and the Owner, such Operating Budget shall be
assumed to be approved by Firancial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty and the Owner after
45 days unless (a) Firanetal-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty or the Owner, as applicable,
gives written notice otherwise to the PAC and the Contractor within 45 days after
receipt by Finanetal-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty and the Owner of the Operating
Budget or (b) a Trigger Event (as defined in the Indenture), an Event of Default (as
defined in the Indenture) or an Event of Default (as defined in this Agreement) exists.
The Contractor will make any reasonable changes to a proposed Operating Budget
required by Finranetal-SeeurityOwner and -Assured Guaranty and submit a revised
Operating Budget to Financial-SeeurityOwner and -Assured Guaranty for approval
within five Business Days. Upon receipt of final approval by Firaneial
SeeurityOwner and Assured Guaranty, the Contractor shall prepare the related Loan
Payment Schedule as set forth in the Loan Agreement. By June 15 in each year
during the term of this Agreement, commencing June 15, 20121998, the PAC shall
approve an Operating Budget, which has been approved by Firancial-Security
Assured Guaranty and the Owner, for the next Fiscal Year. Notwithstanding the
obligation to approve an Operating Budget which has been approved by Assured
Guaranty and the Owner, the PAC may state its objections, concerns or comments to
changes to the Operating Budget required by Assured—Assured Guaranty or Owner.
If a Trigger Event or an Event of Default (as defined in the Indenture) or an Event of
Default (as defined herein) exists, the Contractor shall make any changes to the
Operating Budget required by Firanetal-SeeurityOwner or -Assured Guaranty and
submit such revised Operating Budget to Financial-SeeurityOwner and -Assured
Guaranty within five Business Days and shall adopt the budget as so revised.

(b)Not later than Beecember—January 2515 in each year during each term of this
Agreement, the Contractor shall prepare and file with the PAC Representative and
the Owner a mid-year budget report for the current Fiscal Year and may recommend
budget revisions. The mid-year budget report shall be made available for inspection
by Project residents and members of the public prior to submission to Owner. Project

residents and members of the public may submit comments to the Contractor and the
PAC, which the Contractor will promptly forward to the Owner and the Agency. The
PAC Governing Board may reV|eW the mid- year budget report and—wrth%h&pﬁer

dISCUSS any revisions WhICh the PAC Representatwe—deems adwsable—anel—are
approved-by-the-Owner-with-the Contractor.. After the time for public review and
comment has ended, and the PAC has approved and, if applicable, stated its
objections, concerns or comments to, Hor-disapproved the mid-year budget report,
the Contractor will submit the mid-year budget report to Finrancial-SeeurityOwner
and -Assured Guaranty for approval. Owner and Assured Guaranty shall approve or
require changes disapprove-orreguire-changes-to the mid-year budget proposed by
the mid--year budget report within 45 days of receipt of same. The Contractor will
make any reasonable changes to the proposed mid--year budget—Budget required by
Owner or Assured Guaranty and submit a revised Operating Budget to Owner and
Assured Guaranty for approval within five Business Days and Contractor shall
implement the budget as so revised. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the
revised Operating Budget to the PAC.
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| (©) The Contractor shall pay all expenses incurred in connection with the operation
and management of the Project pursuant to this Agreement from amounts deposited in the
Operation and Maintenance Account as hereinafter set forth; provided, however, no expenses
shall be paid in any Fiscal Year unless the same are included in the Operating Budget or Capital
Plan for such Fiscal Year which has been adopted in accordance with this Agreement, unless
| the PAC, the Owner and Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty give their prior written consent.
In the event that any expense is incurred, or in the opinion of the Contractor ought properly be
incurred, which is not included in the Operating Budget, or in the event at any time amounts
deposited in the Operation and Maintenance Account are not sufficient to permit the payment
of any budgeted expense, the Contractor shall promptly notify the PAC Representative, the
Owner and Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty and provide information relating to such
expense as the PAC Representative, the Owner or Finrancial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty may
request. Payment of such expense shall be made either directly by the PAC or, at the option of
the PAC, by the Contractor out of amounts deposited in the Operation and Maintenance
Account, but only with the prior written approval of the PAC Representative, the Owner and

| Financial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty.

| (d) The Contractor is liable for repayment of disallowed costs. Disallowed costs may be
identified through audits, monitoring or other processes. The Contractor shall be
required to respond to any adverse findings which may lead to disallowed costs.

(e)The Contractor shall provide, by date due, to the PAC, the Owner and Financial

Seeurity-Assured Guaranty the monthly reports required by the Management Plan.

The Contractor shall, in addition, and upon the written request of the PAC

| Representative, the Owner or Finanetal-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty furnish such other

and/or further information concerning the operation of the Project in such manner and

on such forms as the PAC Representative, the Owner or Financial-Seeurity-Assured

Guaranty may specify from time to time. The Contractor shall be held strictly

accountable for all receipts and disbursements with respect to the operation of the
Project.

(f) The Contractor shall not incur annual expenses which exceed expenses for any major
category of the Operating Budget in excess of 10% of the related category in the
approved Operating Budget without the prior written approval of the PAC, the Owner
and Assured Guaranty. Annual expenses in any major cateqory of the Operating
Budget less than 10% shall require the approval of PAC and Owner’s designated
representative.

The Contractor shall not exceed the total annual approved Operating Budget without
prior approval of the PAC, Owner and Assured Guaranty.

| Section 10. Capital Plan; Capital Improvement Agreement.

(a) The Contractor shall on behalf of the Owner, on or before May 1, 20121998 and on or
before each May 1 during each Subsequent Term, submit to the PAC, to the Owner and

to Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty for approval-by-Financial-Security's-consulting
engineer, a capital expenditure plan for the Project for the next five three Fiscal-Year
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period (each, a "Capital Plan™)._Assured Guaranty or Owner may, but are not obligated
to, retain a consultant engineer to review the Capital Plan. The cost of said consulting
engineer shall be paid for only with Project funds. Each Capital Plan shall include an
estimate of the required annual contribution to the Replacement Reserve Fund, shall be
prepared based upon findings of the physical needs reports prepared by Kleinfelder, Inc.
with respect to the geotechnical evaluation and by Park Utilities Inc. with respect to the
underground utilities lines, and the Physical Needs Report prepared pursuant to
subsection (e) hereof and shall detail descriptions of all planned capital improvements
to be made to the Project during the related Fiscal Years, an estimate of expenditures to
be incurred therewith each month of such Fiscal Years and a timetable for completion of
such improvements. The Capital Plan shall be submitted to Firancial-SeeurityOwner
and Assured Guaranty with a notice that failure of Financial-SeeurityOwner and
Assured Guaranty to respond within 3660 days constitutes approval of the plan by
Financial-Seeurity—Financial-SecurityOwner or Assured Guaranty as applicable. Owner
or Assured Guaranty, as applicable, shall approve or require changes to such plan
within 3060 days of its submission and shall advise the PAC, the-Owner-and the
Contractor in writing of any changes to be made therein or Financial-Seeurity'sOwner or
Assured Guaranty's approval. Unless a Trigger Event (as defined in the Indenture) or
any Event of Default (as defined in either this Management Agreement or the
Indenture) exists, failure of Financial-SecurityAssured Guaranty and/or Owner to
approve or require changes to such plan within 3660 days of its submission shall be
deemed to be approval of the Capital Plan.

(b) If Finanecial-Seeurity's-the consulting engineer retained by Assured Guaranty and/or
Owner disagrees as to the cost of a capital improvement detailed on the Capital Plan,

Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty and/or Owner will provide the PAC and the
Contractor with evidence of the basis for the disagreement, as provided by the
consulting engineer.

——The Contractor will make any changes required by Finranetal-SeeurityOwner an/or
Assured Guaranty to the Capital Plan (if requested in a timely fashion as described
above), including changes to the amount of required monthly contributions to the
Replacement Reserve Fund, within five Business Days, and-the PACContractor will
provide copies of such revised Capital Plan to the Centracterand-the-Owner and the
PAC within two Business Days after receipt of approval from Finaneial-SeeurityOwner
and Assured Guaranty.

()

{6

{eh-Funds for capital expenditures outlined on the Capital Plan will be deposited into the
Replacement Reserve Fund established by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture. The amount of
funds maintained in the Replacement Reserve Fund will be based upon a physical needs reserve
analysis report prepared by a consulting engineer and mutually agreed upon by the Contractor

| and the PAC, with the approval of Financial-Security-Owner and Assured Guaranty. Upon

completion of any capital expenditure detailed on a Capital Plan, the Contractor will submit to

| the Trustee, with a copy to Financial-SecurityAssured Guaranty, Owner and the PAC, the

invoice for such expense, together with a requisition for payment which includes a certification
that: (a) the related expense was included in the Capital Plan and the amount requested to be
paid is not greater than the amount allocated for such expense on the current Capital Plan; (b)
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the required repairs were performed in a satisfactory manner-; and (c) any contract for works of
improvement pursuant to the Capital Plan was completed in compliance with the requirements
for contracting set forth in Exhibit B. If the amount of the invoice is greater than the amount
allocated for such expense on the current Capital Plan, the Contractor must certify the amount
of the variance and obtain the written consent of Financial-SeeurityOwner and —Assured
Guaranty for the Trustee to pay the excess amount prior to submission of the related requisition
to the Trustee (such consent to be included with the requisition submitted to the Trustee).

(d)

t)(e) During the last fiscal quarter of 2007-and-20172020, the Centroling—Party's
consulting engineer retained by Owner with the approval of Assured Guaranty, as an

operating expense of the ;Project, shall conduct a new 10-year physical needs reserve
analysis with respect to the Project. Findings of such analysis shall be set forth in a
written report (the "Physical Needs Report™) delivered to the Controlling Party,
CLGFA, the Trustee, Financial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, the Owner, the PAC and the
Contractor. The-Owner-and-the Contractor shall prepare successive Capital Plans based
upon the findings of the Physical Needs Report as approved by Owner and Assured

Guaranty.

6] On or before the Effective Date, the PAC will provide the Contractor with a
copy of the "Capital Improvement Agreement" dated March 13, 1997 pursuant to which
the PAC agrees to make certain repairs and improvements to the Project as listed on the
schedule attached to the Capital Improvement Agreement. Upon completion of the
repairs detailed in such agreement, the Contractor will prepare, for the PAC's
submission to Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, such evidence as Finanetal-Seeurity
Assured Guaranty shall reasonably require to demonstrate completion of such repairs,
together with a requisition, substantially in the form attached as Exhibit B to the Capital
Improvements Agreement, to the Trustee to transfer funds sufficient to pay such
invoices from the "Capital Improvements Subaccount™ created pursuant to the
Indenture to the Operation and Maintenance Account. The Contractor will promptly
pay the invoices from the amounts so transferred.

H—In the event there are insufficient Revenues to pay all amounts due and owing under the
Mortgage Loan Documents payable from Revenues or to comply with the covenants set
forth in Section 3 of the Pledge Agreement and Section 2.02(t) of the Insurance
Agreement, the Contractor and the PAC will prepare and submit within 30 days a "Net
Operating Income" petition to the City in accordance with the provisions of Ordinance
No. 1341. The purpose of such a petition will be to obtain a space rent increase
sufficient to comply with such covenants.

(@

—The Contractor shall not incur Capital Plan expenses which exceed expenses for any major
category of the Capital Plan in excess of 10% of the related category in the approved Capital
Plan without the prior written approval of the PAC, the Owner and Assured Guaranty. Annual
expenses in any major category of the Capital Plan less than 10% shall require the approval of
PAC and Owner’s designated representative. EXxpenses which exceed the identified specific
capital project budget in the Capital Plan shall require the approval of PAC and Owner’s
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designated representative. The Contractor shall not exceed the total annual approved Capital
Plan budget without prior approval of the PAC, Owner and Assured Guaranty.

o)

| Section 11. Compensation.

@) As compensation for the performance of its services hereunder, the
Contractor shall be paid a current management fee equal to $4;467- $4,417 per month
and to be increased to -$5,000 per month effective July 1, 2012 -and $5,790 per month
effective July 1, 2013, pro rated for partial months. In addition, the Contractor shall be
entitled to reimbursement for its reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of its
duties hereunder, to the extent such expenses are properly incurred under this Agreement
and are included in the Operating Budget or otherwise approved by the PAC, the Owner
and Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty. Said reasonable expenses shall include the
salaries of on site employees of Contractor in an amount included in the Operating
Budget and approved by the PAC, Owner and Assured Guaranty. In addition to the
salaries of on site employees of Contractor, Owner may, but is not obligated to, permit
Contractor to rent to Contractor’s on site employees any Owner owned mobile homes,
existing on the Project site. The rent and utilities, if any, to be paid by said employees,
shall be agreed upon in advance by Owner and Contractor and may upon agreement
between Owner and Contractor be included as a portion of benefits or compensation to
be provided to said on-site employees of Contractor.

(b) The Contractor acknowledges that, notwithstanding any other provision
of this Agreement, it shall receive from the Trustee on the Allocation Date of each
month its Management Fee for the previous month pursuant to Section 5.03 of the
Indenture, an amount equal to the utility charges for the previous month pursuant to
Section 5.03 of the Indenture as certified to the Trustee by the Contractor, and an
amount equal to the monthly operating expenses for the Project, as set forth in the
current Operating Budget, in accordance with the terms of Section 5.03 of the Indenture.

| Section 12. Documentation and Records.

@) On or prior to the Effective Date, the Contractor shall provide the PAC
with copies of the following documents, evidencing filing with the appropriate
governmental agency: (i) Articles of Incorporation; (ii) names and addresses of the
current officers and/or Board of Directors of the Contractor; and (iii) a copy of the
Contractor's adopted personnel policies and procedures.

| (b) The Contractor shall immediately report to the PAC any changes,
subsequent to the date of this Agreement, in the Contractor's Articles of Incorporation,
officers, Board of Directors, personnel policies and procedures.

(©) The Contractor shall keep accurate books and records and in a form

| acceptable to the PAC, Financial-Seeurity—Assured Guaranty and the Owner, in
connection with all matters arising under the terms of this Agreement. The Contractor

| shall allow the PAC, the Trustee, the Owner and Firanetal-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, or
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any of their representatives, during normal business hours, access to the records and
correspondence of the Contractor pertaining to any transaction arising out of this
Agreement to audit, examine or copy any or all such books and records, including,
without limitation, all contracts and subcontracts, invoices, payrolls, records of
personnel, conditions of employment, materials and all other data relating to the Project
and matters covered by this Agreement. The Contractor will be notified in advance that
an audit will be conducted. The Contractor will be required to respond to any audit
findings, and have the responses included in the final audit report. The cost of any such
audit will be borne by the RPACProject._Contractor shall maintain an inventory of Owner
Personal Property which shall identify all of the personal property of Owner in the
possession and control of Property Manager or PAC and which are present at the Project.

At the close of each Fiscal Year, the Contractor shall allow the books of the
Operation and Maintenance Account to be examined and audited by a certified public
accountant, selected by the RPACOwner and approved by Finaneial-SeeurityAssured
Guaranty, who shall transmit a copy of his report of said audit to the Owner and PAC
within 90 days after the close of each Fiscal Year. The Contractor shall maintain
complete and accurate records of all its transactions including, but not limited to,
contracts, invoices, time cards, cash receipts, vouchers, canceled checks, bank
statements, client statistical records, personnel, property and all other pertinent records
sufficient to reflect properly all direct and indirect costs of whatever nature claimed to
have been incurred or anticipated to be incurred to perform this Agreement or to operate
the Project and all other matters covered by this Agreement.

(d) The Contractor shall preserve and make available its records until:

0] The expiration of five years from the date of final payment to the
Contractor under this Agreement and in compliance with Section 8.04 of the
Delegation Agreement;

(i) For such longer period, if any, as is required by applicable law;
Or

(iii) If this Agreement is terminated, for a period of five years from the
date of termination.

(e) The Contractor shall keep a current inventory of all personal property of Owner which is in
the possession of PAC or the Contractor and shall provide a certified copy of same to Owner
along with the annual financial statements submitted to Owner in accordance with paragraph
8.03 of the Delegation Agreement. The Contractor shall not sell, transfer, gift, hypothecate,
lend, or otherwise dispose of any of the personal property of Owner without the express written
consent of Owner and in accordance with the surplus property disposition policies of Owner.
To the extent that Project funds are at any time used to purchase or otherwise acquire or
maintain any personal property to be used at the Project, said acquisition shall be made in
accordance with the purchasing policy of Owner as set forth in Exhibit B hereto and such
personal property shall become the property of Owner and shall be added to the personal
property inventory upon acquisition. In addition, the inventory of personal property shall
include an inventory of the personal property of all other persons or organizations which is
stored at or on the Project other than Personal Property of residents stored on their individual

Spaces.
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Section 13. Contract Compliance.

Evaluation and monitoring of the Project performance shall be the mutual responsibility of both
the PAC and the Contractor. The Contractor shall furnish all data, statements, records,
information and reports necessary for the PAC and Owner, if requested, to monitor, review and
evaluate the performance of the Project and its components.

Section 14. Events of Default.
The occurrence of any of the following events shall constitute an "Event of Default™ hereunder:

@) Any representation or warranty made by the Contractor under this
Agreement, or in any certificate or report furnished under this Agreement, shall prove to be
untrue or incorrect in any material respect as of the date when made or deemed to be made;

(b) A continuing violation or breach of any covenant or material term of this
Agreement (other than a failure or breach described in another paragraph of this Section 14) for
a period of 30 days after written notice of such breach is given to the Contractor by the PAC, the
Trustee, the Owner or Finaneial-SeedrityAssured Guaranty, provided that, if such failure shall
be of a nature that it cannot be cured within 30 days, such failure shall not constitute an Event of
Default hereunder if within such 30-day period the Contractor shall have given notice to the
PAC, the Owner and Financial-Security-Assured Guaranty of corrective action it proposes to
take, which corrective action is agreed in writing by the PAC, the Owner and Financial-Security
Assured Guaranty (in the event Finanetal-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, the Owner and the PAC
do not agree, the decision of Financial-Seecurity—Assured Guaranty will control) to be
satisfactory, and the Contractor shall thereafter pursue such corrective action diligently until
such default is cured;

(©) Failure of the Contractor to (i) deposit any Revenues collected in
connection with the Project (other than security deposits) into the Deposit Only Account in
accordance with this Agreement, (ii) deposit any security deposits into a separate account
therefor or (iii) pay generally when due any operating expenses related to the Project to the
extent funds are on deposit in the Operations and Maintenance Account;

(d) The total annual expenses for any major category of the Operating
Budget or Capital Plan for the Project exceeds 10% of the category amount in the related
Operating Budget or Capital Plan approved by Finaneial-Security-Assured Guaranty and the
Owner, unless such variance has been previously approved by the PAC, the Owner and
Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty (in its sole discretion). Such major categories include all
operating expenses of the Project, with the exception of taxes, insurance and utilities.

(e) Failure of the Contractor to respond, in a timely manner, to any inquiry
of the PAC, the Owner or Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty pertaining to any Monthly
Reports required pursuant to the Management Plan_or any request for information pertaining to
the Project from the PAC, the Owner or Assured Guaranty;
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()] An "event of default™" exists under any Mortgage Loan Document;

(0) The occupancy rate for the Project, as measured at the end of each
calendar month, is less than 95 %;

(h) The Senior Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the Project for any calendar
month is less than 1.10x;

Q) The Contractor fails to implement and follow the provisions of the
Capital Plan during the time period specified in the Capital Plan;

() The Contractor shall fail to pay its non-Project-related corporate debts
generally as they come due, or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally, or
shall make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or shall institute any proceeding
seeking to adjudicate the Contractor insolvent or seeking a liquidation, or shall take advantage
of any insolvency act, or shall commence a case or other proceeding naming the Contractor as
debtor under the United States Bankruptcy Code or similar law, domestic or foreign, or if a case
or other proceeding shall be commenced against the Contractor under the United States
Bankruptcy code or similar law, domestic or foreign, or any proceeding shall be instituted
against the Contractor seeking liquidation of the Contractor or the Contractor's assets and the
Contractor shall fail to take appropriate action resulting in the withdrawal or dismissal of such
proceeding within 30 days or there shall be appointed or the Contractor shall consent to, or
acquiesce in, the appointment of a receiver, liquidator, conservator, trustee or similar official in
respect of the Contractor or the whole or any substantial part of its properties or assets or the
Contractor shall take any corporate action in furtherance of any of the foregoing; or

(K) Failure of the Contractor to conduct the leasing of the Project to comply
with all applicable leasing restrictions contained in this Agreement, including, without
limitation, the restrictions set forth in Section 8 of the Management Plan, and the Mortgage
Loan Documents or to preserve the tax-exempt status of interest on the Bonds.

Section 15. Remedies.

@ Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured
Guaranty may, or the PAC or the Owner may, with the consent of Financial-SecurityAssured
Guaranty, and shall, at the direction of Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, (i) terminate this
Agreement, immediately upon written notice to the Contractor or upon any date specified in
such notice, or (ii) take whatever action at law or in equity as may appear necessary or desirable
in its judgment to collect the amounts then due and thereafter to become due under this
Agreement or to enforce performance of any obligation of the Contractor under this
Agreement.

Upon termination of this Agreement, Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty may, with
the prior written consent of the Owner, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld and
shall not be required if a Trigger Event or an Event of Default (as defined in the Indenture)
exists, appoint a successor property manager, or the PAC may, with the prior written consent of
Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty and the Owner, which consent may not be unreasonably
withheld and shall not be required if a Trigger Event or an Event of Default (as defined in the
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Indenture) exists, appoint a successor approved by Firanctal-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty and
the Owner.

(b) No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved is intended to be exclusive
of any other available remedy, but each remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
other remedies given under the Mortgage Loan Documents or existing at law or in equity. No
delay or failure to exercise any right or power accruing under this Agreement upon the
occurrence of any Event of Default or otherwise shall impair any such right or power or shall be
construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to
time and as often as may be deemed expedient.

Section 16. [RESERVED].
Section 17. Transfer of Records.

In the event the Contractor's duties, responsibilities and liabilities hereunder are terminated
pursuant to either Sections 4 or 15 of this Agreement, the Contractor shall discharge such
duties and responsibilities during the period from the date it acquires knowledge of such
termination until the effective date thereof with the same degree of diligence and prudence
which it is obligated to exercise hereunder, and shall take no action whatsoever that might
impair or prejudice the rights or financial condition of its successor, the Owner or the PAC.
Furthermore, the Contractor agrees to cooperate with the PAC, the Owner and Financial
Seeurity-Assured Guaranty and any successor Contractor in effecting the termination of the
Contractor duties and responsibilities hereunder and shall promptly also transfer to the Deposit
Only Account all amounts held by the Contractor which have not been deposited into the
Deposit Only Account or which are thereafter received by the Contractor with respect to the
Project. The Contractor shall immediately provide the PAC, Finaneial-Seeurity—Assured
Guaranty and the Owner access to all documents, records, payroll, minutes of meetings,
correspondence and , all other data pertaining to the PAC funds held by the Contractor
pursuant to this Agreement and, upon the request of the PAC, the Owner or Firanetal
SeeurityAssured Guaranty, but at the expense of the Contractor, deliver to the Owner or the
successor Contractor, all files, documents and records (including computer tapes and diskettes,
including data but not programs) relating to the Project and an accounting of any amounts
collected and held by the Contractor, and shall otherwise use its best efforts to effect the
orderly and efficient transfer of its rights, duties and responsibilities to the assuming party.

Upon termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall (i) be paid for all documented
services actually rendered hereunder to the date of such termination; provided, however, the
PAC shall be obligated to compensate the Contractor only for that portion of the Contractor's
services which are allowable costs and expenses as determined by an audit or other monitoring
device; (ii) turn over to the Owner immediately any and all copies of studies, reports and other
data, whether or not completed, prepared by the Contractor or its subcontractors, if any, in
connection with this Agreement. Such materials shall become the property of the Owner. The
Contractor, however, shall not be liable for the PAC's or the Owner's use of incomplete
materials or for the PAC's or the Owner's use of completed documents if used for other than the
services contemplated by this Agreement; and (iii) transfer to the Owner all assets acquired
with Owner funds unless otherwise negotiated by separate agreement.
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| Section 18. Project Coordination.

(a) The PAC Representative may designate an individual who shall render overall
supervision of the progress and performance of this Agreement by the PAC. All
services agreed to be performed by the PAC shall be under the overall direction
of the designated individual.

(b) As of the date hereof, the Contractor has designated Al Frei to assume overall
responsibility for the execution and operation of this Agreement. The PAC,
Owner and Financtal-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty shall be immediately notified
in writing of the appointment of a new representative.

(c) All notices or other correspondence required or contemplated by this Agreement
shall be sent to the parties at the following addresses:

PAC: Park Acquisition Corporation of Marin Valley Mobile Country Club
100 Marin Valley Drive
Novato, CA 94949-6716
Telephone: (415) 883-5911
Attention: President

Contractor: Mr. Al Frei

Frei Real Estate Services

3300-DBouglas8340 Auburn Blvds-.

Suite 390-Resevitle100

Citrus Heights, CA 956610

Telephone:  (916) #73772-8110 Telecopy: (916)
#81-2557772-8111

. ol " . ol . .
350-Park-Avenue

Assured Guaranty:  Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp..
31 West 52" Street
New York, NY 1002219
Attn: Risk Management Department
Telephone: (212) 826-0100
Fax: (212) 445-8705

Owner: City of Novato
75 Rowland Way
Suite 200
Novato, CA 94945

Telephone:  (212)—826-0100415)
899-8900
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-FAX: (415)
Attention: Assistant City Manager

(in each case in which notice or other communication to Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty
refers to an Event of Default, or with respect to which failure on the part of Firanetal-Seeurity
Assured Guaranty to respond shall be deemed to constitute consent or acceptance, then a copy
of such notice or other communication should also be sent to the attention of each of the
General Counsel and the Head-Financial-GuarantyStructured Finance Group and shall be
marked to indicate "URGENT MATERIAL ENCLOSED.")

Trustee: First——Trust—of — California—National
AssociationU.S. Bank
-Suite 1000-400
One California Street
San Francisco, CA 94111
Telephone: (415) 273-4555677-3600

FAX:{415)273-4590

Attention: Corporate Trust Department

All notices shall either be hand delivered or sent by United States mail, registered or
certified, postage prepaid. Notices given in such a manner shall be deemed received when
received. Any party may change its address for the purpose of this Section by giving five days'
written notice of such change to each other party hereto, Finanetal-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty
and the Trustee in the manner provided in this Section.

Section 19. Independent Contractor.

This is an Agreement by and between independent contractors and is not intended and shall not
be construed to create the relationship of servant, employee, partnership, joint venture or
association between the Contractor and the PAC. The Contractor, including its officers,
employees, agents or independent contractors or subcontractors, shall not have any claim under
this Agreement or otherwise against the Owner for any Social Security, Worker's
Compensation or employee benefits extended to employees of the Contractor.

Section 20. Successors; Assignability.

This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Contractor and the
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successors and assigns of the PAC, provided, however, that the Contractor shall not assign its
rights under this Agreement without (a) the PAC's and the Owner's prior written consent, which
may not be unreasonably withheld and will not be required if an Event of Default (as defined in
the Indenture) exists and (b) Firancial-Seeurity'sAssured Guaranty's prior written consent. No
successor Contractor may be appointed without the approval of Finrancial-SeeurityAssured
Guaranty and Owner.

Section 21. [RESERVED].
Section 22. Disclosure of Confidential Information.

Except as may be required by law or this Agreement, the PAC and the Contractor agree to
maintain the confidentiality of any information regarding Project residents pursuant to this
Agreement or their immediate families which may be obtained through application forms,
interviews, tests, reports from public agencies or counselors or any other source. Without the
written permission of the resident, such information shall be divulged only as necessary for
purposes related to the performance or evaluation of the services and work to be provided
pursuant to this Agreement or as required by state or federal law, and then only as required or
to persons having responsibilities under this Agreement, including those furnishing services
through approved subcontracts.

Section 23. Waiver of Rights and Remedies.

In no event shall any payment by the PAC, the Owner or Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty
constitute or be construed to be a waiver by the PAC, the Owner or Finrancial-Seeurity-Assured
Guaranty of any breach of the covenants or conditions of this Agreement or any default which
may then exist on the part of the Contractor, and the making of any such payment while any
such breach or default shall exist, shall in no way impair or prejudice any right or remedy
available to the PAC, the Owner or Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty with respect to such
breach or defaults. In no event shall payment to the Contractor by the PAC, the Owner or
Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty in any way constitute a waiver by the PAC, the Owner or
Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty of their rights to recover from the Contractor the amount
of money paid to the Contractor on any item which is not eligible for payment under this
Agreement. No act of omission by the Contractor, Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, the
Owner or the PAC, including specifically any failure to exercise any right, remedy or recourse,
shall be deemed to be a waiver or release of the same, such waiver or release to be effected only
through a written document executed by the PAC, with the prior written consent of Financial
Seeurity-Assured Guaranty and the Owner, or by Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, and then
only to the extent specifically recited therein. A waiver or release with reference to any one
event shall not be constructed as continuing, or as a bar to, or as a waiver of, any subsequent
right, remedy or recourse as to a subsequent event.

Section 24. Amendments.

Amendments to the terms or conditions of this Agreement shall be requested in writing by the
party desiring such amendments, and any such amendment shall be effective only upon the
mutual Agreement in writing of the parties hereto, with the prior written consent of Financial
Seeurity-Assured Guaranty and the Owner.
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Section 25. Integrated Document; Counterparts.-

This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the PAC and the Contractor with
respect to the subject matter hereof. No written or oral Agreements with any officer, agent or
employee of the PAC prior to execution of this Agreement shall affect or modify any of the
terms or obligations contained in any documents comprising this Agreement.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts by the parties hereto, and all such
counterparts shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 26. Invalidity.

In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be
held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity or unenforceability
shall not affect any other provisions hereof, and this Agreement shall be construed as if such
invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision(s) had never been included.

Section 27. Third-Party Beneficiary.

Finanecial—Seeurity  Assured Guaranty, CLGFA and the Owner shall be third-party
beneficiaries to this Agreement, entitled to enforce the provisions hereof as if parties hereto.

Section 28. Representations and Warranties.

The Contractor hereby represents and warrants to and covenants with the PAC, and for the
benefit of Financial-SecurityAssured Guaranty, the Owner and the Trustee, that:

@) The Contractor is a sole proprietorship in good standing under the laws of
the State of California;

(b) The Contractor holds, and will hold during the term of this Agreement, all
material licenses, certificates and permits from all governmental authorities necessary
for the conduct of its business and has received no notice of proceedings relating to the
revocation of any such license, certificate or permit which singly or in the aggregate, if
the subject of an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding, would materially affect the
conduct of the business, results of operations, net worth or condition (financial or
otherwise) of the Contractor;

(©) The Contractor has the full power and authority to execute, deliver and
perform, and to enter into and consummate, all transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, has duly authorized the execution, delivery and performance of this
Agreement and has duly executed and delivered this Agreement, and this Agreement
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Contractor, enforceable against it
in accordance with its terms, except as such enforcement may be limited (i) by
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar laws affecting the
enforcement of creditors' rights in general and (ii) by general equity principles
(regardless of whether such enforcement is considered in a proceeding in equity or at
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law);

(d) Neither the execution and delivery by the Contractor of this Agreement,
the consummation by the Contractor of the transactions contemplated hereby nor the
fulfillment of or compliance by the Contractor with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement will conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms, conditions or
provisions of any legal restriction or any material agreement or instrument to which the
Contractor is ; a party or by which it is bound, or constitute a default or result in an
acceleration under any of the foregoing, or result in the violation of any law, rule,
regulation, order, judgment or decree to which the Contractor or its property is subject;

(e) The consummation by the Contractor of the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement are in the ordinary course of business of the Contractor; and, at the date
hereof, the Contractor does not believe, nor does it have any reason or cause to believe,
that it cannot perform each and every one of its duties and covenants contained in this
Agreement;

| ()] There is no litigation pending or, to the Contractor's knowledge,
threatened, which, if determined adversely to the Contractor, would adversely affect the
execution, delivery or enforceability of this Agreement, or the ability of the Contractor
to manage the Project hereunder in accordance with the terms hereof, or which would
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Contractor;

(0) No consent, approval, authorization or order of any court or
governmental agency or body is required for the execution, delivery and performance by
the Contractor of or compliance by the Contractor with this Agreement or the
consummation by the Contractor of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
and

| (h) The Contractor is familiar with all material federal, state and local laws,
rules and regulations applicable to the management and operation of mobile home
developments to be occupied in part by individuals of low or moderate income and will
manage the Project in accordance with all such laws, rules and regulations.

Section 29. Conduit Facilitator.

All parties hereto recognize and agree that CLGFA is acting in the transactions contemplated
herein solely in a conduit facilitating role to assist the substantive parties in achieving their
goals; CLGFA is not a substantive party to such transaction; and CLGFA's agreements and
obligations hereunder are solely for the purpose of passing through funds and substantive
agreements and obligations of such substantive parties.

Section 30. No Petition.

The Contractor will not institute against, or join any other person in instituting against, the
Owner, CLGFA or the PAC any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency or
liquidation proceeding, or other proceeding under any bankruptcy or similar law, until the later
| of: (xi) the date on which no Senior Bonds remain Outstanding under the Indenture and no
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amounts are due and payable to Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty under the Indenture or the
Insurance Agreement or (yii) the day which is the 123rd day after the expiration of the
Insurance Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this instrument or caused this

Management Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized agents—this day of
,2012.

PARK ACQUISITION CORPORATION OF
MARIN VALLEY MOBILE COUNTRY CLUB

By:

Michael Holland, President

FREI REAL ESTATE SERVICES, INC.

By:

Al Frei, President
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EXHIBIT A
MANAGEMENT PLAN
TO OPERATE AND MANAGE
MARIN VALLEY MOBILE COUNTRY CLUB

Section 1. Introduction. Given the high cost of housing in relation to wages and salaries in the
Novato area, substantial numbers of low- and moderate-income households find it difficult to secure
affordable housing. Mobile homes constitute a viable affordable housing resource. Nonetheless, the
ownership of mobile home parks by investors may limit the value of mobile homes as an affordable
housing resource. The Park Acquisition Corporation of the Marin Valley Mobile Country Club (the
"PAC") consequently entered into purchase negotiations with the owner of the Marin Valley Mobile
Country Club, located in Novato, California (the "Project”). The Novato Financing Authority {the
“Ownery-has-decided-to-purehasepurchased the Project: and subsequently transferred the Project to the
City of Novato (“Owner”). The PAC has selected Frei Real Estate Services, to operate and manage the
Project.

Section 2. Purposes. The purposes of this Agreement are as follows:
@) to provide full-service operation and management services for the Project;
(b) to enable the sale of revenue bonds at an interest as low as reasonably feasible;

(c) to operate the Project in a professional and businesslike manner and separate the
PAC and the Owner from day-to-day operation and management of the Project;

(d) to encourage residents to seek to resolve issues with the professional managers of
the Project;

(e) to provide mobile home park residents with input in the operation of the Project;

()] to abide by the provisions of Ordinance No. 1341 of the City of Novato, insofar as
they may apply to spaces within the Project;

(9) to provide security that bondholders can expect regular bond payments;

() to create a surplus in the Senior Cashtrap Account and the Subordinate Cashtrap
Account held by the Trustee under the Indenture which will grow annually;

(i) to provide for the regular upkeep of the Project and to make prudent capital
improvements; and

() to create a formal residents' association.

Section 3. Flow of Funds.

(@) The Contractor will arrange for the reading of meters and calculate gas, water, sewer,
electric and other miscellaneous charges and prepare rent and utility bills. On or about the
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twenty-fifth of each month the Contractor will make available rent and utility bills for each space.
When requested by the appropriate individual rent and utility bills will be mailed to a designated
address or delivered to the mobilehome space.

(b) The Contractor will, upon receipt of any Revenues, record the payment upon a
payment register maintained at the Project and available for inspection by representatives of the
| Owner, the PAC and Finaneial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty. Records of any rent and utility
payments shall include, at the least, date received, resident's name, space number, current charges,
total amount collected and the balance due, if any. The Contractor will also maintain a separate
general ledger which will include a record of payments, available for inspection by
| representatives of the Owner, the PAC and Finanetal-SeeurityAssured Guaranty.

(c) The Contractor will establish an Operation and Maintenance Account, which shall
be a separate trust account established in the name of the Owner. No funds relating to the Project
will be commingled with funds of the Contractor or relating to any other matter or person other
than the Project. On each Allocation Date, commencing November 12, 1997, the Trustee will
transfer funds from the Revenue Fund to the Operation and Maintenance Account sufficient to
pay operation and maintenance costs for the current month consistent with the adopted Operating
Budget. On the Effective Date, the Contractor will give the Trustee written notice of the details of
the Operation and Maintenance Account, to permit the Trustee to make the transfers to such
account required pursuant to the Indenture.

Section 4. [RESERVED].

Section 5. Other Pledged Funds. In the event that the Project's Senior Debt Service Coverage
| Ratio falls below 1.20x, the Trustee (at the direction of Firaneial-SecurityAssured Guaranty) may draw
upon moneys in the Senior Cashtrap Account (as defined in the Indenture), and the Senior Debt Service
Reserve Fund (as defined in the Indenture) to cover any shortfall in debt service due on the Senior Bonds
and Project operating expenses and/or redeem Outstanding Senior Bonds. In addition, amounts in the
Subordinate Pledged Funds Account (as defined in the Indenture) and the Subordinate Debt Service
Reserve Fund (as defined in the Indenture) may be drawn upon by the Trustee to cover any shortfall in
debt service due on the Subordinate Bonds. Should the Trustee draw upon moneys in any such account,
the PAC and the Contractor will prepare and submit within 30 days a "Net Operating Income" petition to
the City of Novato in accordance with the provisions of Ordinance No. 1341. The purpose of such a
petition will be to obtain a space rent increase sufficient to comply with such covenants.

Section 6. Budget and Expenditures. The budgets prepared in accordance with Section 9 of the
Management Agreement will include the following line items: Office Supplies, Postage, Telephone,
Computer & Copies Supplies, Legal, Bank Charges, Bookkeeping, Audit, Dues & Subscriptions,
Mileage, Travel/Meals, Business Development & Training, General & Administrative, Marketing,
Social Programs, Repair & Maintenance, Landscape Maintenance, Tools & Equipment Repair,
Swimming Pool Supplies, Lighting Supplies, Grounds Materials & Supplies, Street/Parking Lot
Maintenance, Security Services, Vehicle Maintenance, Resident Manager, Manager's Mobile Home
Rent, Assistant Manager, Maintenance Assistant, Health Insurance & Benefits, Payroll Taxes, Worker's
Compensation, Electricity, Gas, Trash Removal, Sewer, Water, Cable TV, Property & Liability
Insurance, Trees, Utilities, Concrete, Street Repairs, Manager's Home Repairs, and Management Fee
and capital expenditures.
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Section 7. Monthly Reports.

@) On the twentieth day of each month, commencing November 1997, the Contractor
will provide Finanetal-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, the Owner and the PAC with a Profit & Loss
Statement, Cash Flow Statement, Balance Sheet and Budget Control Report for the prior month.
The Budget Control Report will compare revenues and expenditures to the budget for the prior
month and for the fiscal year and include date of purchase, vendor, item purchased, authorized by,
the amount and the remaining balance in each budget category.

(b) On the twentieth day of each month, the Contractor will provide Financial
SeecurityAssured Guaranty, the PAC and the Owner a Delinquency Report. The Delinquency
Report will help maintain control of past-due rents, the collection process and the legal status of
cases. The Delinquency Report will contain the date, property, resident's name, space number,
current month past due, prior months past due, total, date 30-60-day notice filed, date unlawful
detainer filed and served, court date, date of eviction, court fees and additional comments.

(c) On the twentieth day of each month, the Contractor will provide the PAC a Check
Register Report listing invoices paid during the prior month. In addition, the Contractor will
notify the PAC of any past-due notices, liens filed or other actions that an employee, vendor or
service provider may have taken to collect on overdue wages or payments.

(d) On the twentieth day of each month, the Contractor will provide Financial
SeeurityAssured Guaranty, the Owner and the PAC with a Vacancy Turnover Report for the prior
month. This report will include a recapitulation of vacant spaces, mobile homes available for sale
and mobile homes occupied. The report will also include notifications received from residents
who intend to move out of the Project and a cumulative total of expected move-outs and move-ins.

(e) Prior to the twentieth day of each month, commencing November 1997, the
Contractor will calculate and report in writing to the Owner, Financial-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty
and the PAC the NOI, Nonowner Occupied Percentage, the VVacancy Factor and Senior Debt
Service Coverage Ratio for the Project for the previous calendar month and Senior. Debt Service
Coverage Ratio for the fiscal year.

)] The Contractor will, within 60 days following the Effective Date, create
a listing of resident household incomes. The purpose of this listing is to verify qualification for a
property tax exemption, authority for bond financing and requirements for use of Redevelopment
Agency funds. The Contractor will obtain household income information from move-in
households. On an annual basis, by January 31, commencing January 31, 1998, the Contractor
will provide the Owner with a list of resident household incomes.

(9) The Contractor will provide to the Owner, the PAC and the Issuer on a monthly basis,
by the twentieth day of each month, an accurate and detailed statement listing collections,
disbursements, delinquencies, uncollectible accounts, vacancies and other matters pertaining to
the operation of the Project during the previous month and copies of the monthly statements for
the prior month for the Deposit Only Account and the Operation and Maintenance Account. Upon
written request by the Owner, the PAC or Finaneial-SeeurityAssured Guaranty, the Contractor
will furnish such other information concerning the operation of the Project in such manner and on
such form as the Owner, the PAC or Finanetal-Seeurity-Assured Guaranty may specify from time
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to time. The Contractor will be held strictly accountable for all receipts and disbursements with
respect to the operation of the Project.

Section 8. Median Area Income. The Contractor will offer vacant spaces to' only households with
incomes meeting the requirements of the Pledge Agreement. If the standards set forth in the Pledge
Agreement with respect to Very Low Income Residents, Lower Income Residents and Moderate Income
Residents are not met at any time, the Contractor will immediately notify the Owner, Financial-Security
Assured Guaranty and the PAC. Area income values will be those periodically calculated and published
by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Section 9. Environmental. The Contractor will, prior to December 1, 1997, (i) prepare an Operations

and Malntenance Plan acceptable to Dames and Moore and EmaneraJéee&H%yANﬁmespeeHe#}e
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Exhibit B— Management Agreement
Purchasing Parameters for MVMICC

As a publicly owned Park, MVMCC needs to follow the purchasing requirements that are legally required by state law,
municipal ordinance and City administrative policy in terms of its purchasing of goods, services, or capital improvement
projects. This Attachment summarizes the requirements and outline how they will be translated to MVMCC, the PAC and
the Property Manager.

GOODS
“Goods” includes the purchase of supplies, material or equipment.
Amount Authority Process
> $30,000 City Council Formal bid or Request for Proposal required.
$10,000-$30,000 Property Manager with  Informal bid from at least 3 competitive sources.
City Manager’s Property Manager may solicit and gain City Manager
Approval approval for purchase.
$5,000-$10,000 Property Manager Quotes from 3 competitive sources. Provide to

lowest quote.
< $5,000 Property Manager Bids or quotes not required unless it totals more than
5,000/year as a recurring purchase.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Professional services includes the use of consultants, engineers, architects, or other professions where the work
provided is analysis and recommendations based on an individual technical expertise. The “product” provided is often a
report, analysis or recommendations on which future decisions are based. The City has two Consultant Services
Agreements — a long form and a short form — based on the work being provided.

Service Value: Award Authority: Lead and Process

<$30,000 Property Manager or City  Property Manager Lead or City Staff Lead
Staff Dependent Upon Must obtain 3 informal bids or proposals.
the Specific Consultant If an RFP done, then needs to be posted on the City’s E-Bid.
Services Being Prior to initiation of consultant selection, PAC, Property
Undertaken Manager and City staff will consult to determine who shall

take lead. City retains right to make final decision regarding
the process.

>$30,000 City as Lead with City Staff Lead
approval by City Council Formal Request for Proposal for consultant services
required required. Formal City Council review and approval
required.

Notes -- All contract documents created by the Property Manager must include language regarding indemnification and
insurance endorsements protecting the City, Assured Guarantee and the PAC. All contract documents must be reviewed
and approved by the City Attorney.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS (NEW AND MAINTENANCE)

Capital Projects, called “public projects”, as defined by the California Public Contract Code (Section 20160-20175.2) are
subject to specialized purchasing procedures. The goal is to ensure that public work is done by contract after
competitive bidding. Public projects include, but are not limited to:

e Project for the erection, improvement, painting, or repair of public buildings and works;

e Work in or about streams, bays, waterfronts, embankments or other work for protection against overflow;

e Street or sewer work, except maintenance or repair, and

e Furnishing supplies or materials for any such projects, including maintenance or repair of streets or sewers.

Tier #1 — INFORMAL PRICING Below $5,000 (Property Manager Lead)
e No bid or notice required. Obtain 3 informal quotes and choose lowest acceptable bidder. Park contracts

directly with vendor via Frei Real Estate. Frei contract must contain indemnification for PAC, Assured
Guarantee and City. Insurance parameters must also follow City standards. Subject to prevailing wage if
over $1,000.

Tier #2 — VARIOUS OPTIONS $5,000-45,000 (Property Manager Lead)
(This level allows two options which are described below.)

e Negotiated Contract — Obtain minimum of three competitive bids; work provided to lowest acceptable

bidder. Park contracts directly with vendor via Frei Real Estate. Frei contract must contain indemnification
for PAC, Assured Guarantee and City. Insurance parameters must also follow City standards. Subject to
prevailing wage.

City Employees— Utilize city employees to perform work on behalf of the Park.

Tier #3 — INFORMAL BID; From $45,000-$175,000 (City Lead)
e Requires compliance with informal bid rules to give 10 day notice to “City Vendor Database”. (Includes:

description of project and requirements of vendor; must email to all active businesses in the City’s Vendor
Database fitting the requirements of proposed work; review submitted bids and select.)
0 Bidding opportunity will be marketed by posting on the City’s e-bid site and notice published in
newspaper as additional outreach.
0 Must award to lowest “responsible and responsive” bidder; no negotiations. No formal bid opening.
0 Must use City contract.

Tier #4 FORMAL BID; > $175,000 (City Lead)
e Must use the formal contract bidding procedure. City staff takes the lead on purchasing, bidding and

management of this tier.
0 Bidding opportunity will be marketed by posting on the City’s e-bid site and notice published in
newspaper as additional outreach.
0 Must award to lowest “responsible and responsive” bidder; no negotiations. No formal bid opening
0 Must use City contract.

1. All contract documents created by the Property Manager must include language regarding indemnification and
insurance endorsements protecting the City, Assured Guarantee and the PAC. All contract documents must be
reviewed and approved by the City Attorney.

2. Call capital projects are subject to prevailing wage if over $1,000.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS - CONTRACT VALUES AND TIERS

TIER #1
INFORMAL PRICING

LEAD = PROPERTY MANAGER
-No bids or notice required.
-Suggested to try to get 3 quotes for competitive pricing.

TIER #2
NEGOTIATED CONTRACT OR CITY EMPLOYEES PERFORM WORK

LEAD = PROPERTY MANAGER

-3 informal bids; no noticing; lowest responsible bidder; can negotiate
with final bidder

-Alternatively, city employees can perform work

TIER #3
INFORMAL BID

>$45,000 -
LEAD = CITY
5175:000 -Requires noticing to City database of vendors and publishing notice
in newspaper.

-Take lowest responsible bidder; no negotiations.

-No formal bid opening.

TIER #4
FORMAL BID

LEAD = CITY

-Requires noticing to City database of vendors and publishing notice
in newspaper.

-Take lowest responsible bidder; no negotiations.

-Formal bid opening.

Key Parameters
-All public projects over $1,000 are subject to prevailing wage law.

-Public projects cannot be split or separated into smaller work orders or projects for the purposes of evading the
Public Contracting Code.

-In a rare exception, a decision may be made to sole source a scope of work within Tier #1 or #2. If the MVMCC Park
Manager believes there is a need to sole source work, both PAC and City staff must be consulted and approve.

I-f a capital project is highly technical, i.e. slope stability study, City engineering staff may be involved in the review of
the analysis or inspection if the City believes this should be helpful. This can be determined up front during the
budget process.




THE CITY O

February 27, 2012 E-5 NOVATO

TO: City Council | CALIFORNIA
. . ' 75 Rowland Way #200
FROM: Brian Cochran, Finance Manager Novato, CA 94945-3232

(415) 899-8900

SUBJECT: Financial Statements for MYMCC for Fiscal Year 2010-11 f,ﬁf}_f,}vﬂ?i f,fl‘,f

The firm of Mann Urrutia Nelson CPAs and Associates LLP has completed the audit of the City
of Novato’s financial statements for the fiscal year 2010-11. The auditors have issued an
unqualified opinion on the statements.

The statements are in compliance with a number of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) statements, including GASB Statement #45 and Statement #54. Statement #45 requires
the reporting of liabilities and expenses associated with non-pension post employment benefits,
such as retiree health care obligations. Statement #54 has updated the manner in which fund
balances are reported in the financial statements.

Until 2010-11, the City issued separate financial statements for the Novato Financing Authority
(NFA) to report the activities of the NFA and Marin Valley Mobile Country Club. Additionally,
these activities were reported as a non-expendable trust fund in the City’s fiduciary funds. With
the transfer of all assets, liabilities, and activities associated with the park to the City in March
2011, the City Council became the controlling authority. As such, the activities of the park are
now being reported as an enterprise fund within the City’s business-type activities, and separate
financial statements will no longer be issued for the NFA.

The audit firm had several recommendations for improvement with respect to Marin Valley
Mobile Country Club. First, they recommended that we move the activities to an enterprise fund
— this has already been completed as reported above. Second, they suggested that we begin
recording the financial activities of the park in the City’s general ledger and include the park in
our overall financial analysis, which we also agreed with and will begin this year. Finally, the
audit firm recommended that we review the bank reconciliations performed by the property
management firm to verify proper reconciliation at year-end — City management also agreed with
this item.

Attached to this memo are selected pages from the 2010-11 financial statements relevant to
MVMCC. In the government-wide statements, park financial information is shown under the
column labeled “Business-Type Activities”. In the Proprietary Fund statements, park financial
information is shown under the column labeled ‘“Marin Valley Mobile Country Club”. The
complete City of Novato financial statements (including important notes and supplementary
information) will be presented to the City Council at its meeting on February 28, 2012 and
subsequently posted on the City’s website.
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CITY OF NOVATO
STATEMENT QOF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS

Current Assels
Cash and invesimenls
Cash with fiscal agent
Accounis receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Advances to other funds

. Total Current Assets
Non Current Assels
Other assels, net of accumulated amortization
Capital assets, nel of accumulated depreciation
Total an-Current Assets

Total Assels

LIABILITIES

Cument Liabilities
Accounls payable
Interesi payable
Dus to other funds
Depasits
Defered revenue
" Leng-term liabilities - current perlion
Claims payable - current portion

Total Current Liahiiities
Non-Current Liahflittes
Long-tenm liabllitles - net of current portlon
Claims payable - net of current porlion
Total Non-Currant Liabilitles
Tota] Llabilities
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capiial assets, net of related debl
Restricled
Unrestrictad
Total Net Assetls

Total Liabilitles and Net Assets

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
" Marin Valley
Mobile Internal
Country Club = Service Funds
35,559 3,300,412
4,066,106 -
130,203 10,134
: - 408
= 1,422 215
4,232,868 . .
628,497 -
15,129 558 1,656,488
15758013 __ 1,656,488
£ 19,990!881 $ £.369 657
3 48,234 & 67,269
149,125 -
105,393 306,014
100 -
23,948 165,815
345,000 -
- 456,508

€71,800

1

017,606

10,080,000 -

- 1,110,118
10,090,000 1,110,118
10,761,860 212772
4,694,556 1,656,488
4,534,525

9,229,081

519890881

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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2,605,445

4,261,933

$___6.389.857

4733169 .



CITY OF NOVATO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Ulilitles
Other revenus

Total Operating Revenue
OPERATING EXPENSES

0Bt Of BBIVICES . e e

Employee costs
Depreciation and amoertization

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income
Interesl expense

Totai Non-Oper.iting Revenues {Expenses)
Income [Loss) Befors Transfers
TRANSFERS

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Transfers
Change in net assets

Net Assels - July 1, 2010
Prior period edjustment {Nole 15)

Net Assets - July 1, 2010, restaled
Neat Assefs - June 30, 2011

Business-Type Governmental

Actlvities Activities
Marin Valley
Mobile internal

Country Club_ Service Funds

$ 2236241 § 1,145285
§70,037 -
13,915 97,445

—020,193 242,730

1,181,832 . .. 1,470,420
112,514 -
257307 4268 815

1,551,653 1,897,244
1,468,540 (654 514)

203,311 36,516
(609,296) -

(405,985) 36,516
1062555 __ (617.996)

- 420,000
- (22,553)

= 397.447
1,062 555 (220,551)

- 4,482,484

8,166,528 -

— BI66526 __ 4462484

$___0228.081 §___4.261,933

See accompanying notes ta the basic financial stataments.
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CITY OF NOVATO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash recaived from customers

‘Cash paid to supplisrs
Cash paid ic empioyeas
Net Cash Provided by Opereting Activitles

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Due fram ather funds '
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Actlvities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of capilal assets
Principal pald on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Net Cash Used for Capltal and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activilias
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - July 1, 2010

Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30, 2011

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to the Statement of Net Assels
Cash and investmenis

Cash with fiscal agent
Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30, 2011

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS] TO NET CASH
PROVIDED {{USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income {Lass}

Adjustments 1o reconcile operating income (loss) to nat cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreclation expense
Amortization
Changes in assets and liabilltles:
Increass in accounts receivable
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase in claims payable

Nel Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Business-Type Governmental

Activities Activities
Marin Valley
Mobile Intemal

Country Club_ Service Funds

$ 28870981 $ 1,501,940
{1,140,744) (1,496,565)
{112,514} -
1,634,723 5375
227,903 1,367,514
227,503 1,367.514
(257,934) {552,032)
(325,000 -

___ (615.219) -
{1,198 153 (552.032)
203,309 35,510
203,309 36,510
867,782 857,367
3,234,883 2,443 045

54102665 $___3,300412

$ 36,559 $ 3,300,412
4,086.106

§__4102685 §___32300412

1,458,540 (654,514)
228,215 428,815
29,092 -
{123,638) (3,974)
- {408)
23,840 (25,728)
8,574 (66.414)
: 323,598

$ 1634723 % 5375

See accompanying nofes to the basle financial slataments.
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STAFF REPORT E-6 NOVATO

CALIFORNIA

DATE: February 27, 2012 75 Rowland Way #200
Novato, CA 94945-3232
TO: City Council (415) 899-850)

FAX (415) 899-8213
WWW.CLHOVaLO.CA. Uus

FROM: Cathy Capriola, Assistant City Manager

SUBJECT:  Receipt of the Frei Real Estate Services Mid-Y ear Budget Review

REQUEST
Accept the Frei Real Estate Services mid-year budget review.

RECCOMENDATION

Staff recommends accepting Frei Real Estate Services mid-year budget review.

DISCUSSOIN

As part of the Management Agreement, Frei Real Estate Services is required to provide a budget
review. The PAC reviewed the mid-year budget report at their February 1% meeting and
approved it unanimously.

A mid-year budget update was provided to the City on January 13™ 2012 with the review ending
December 31, 2011. It showed a deviation of 9.59% under budget in operating costs and no
budget revision was recommended.

Staff has evaluated this review and has no major concemns. Staff recommends accepting the mid-
year budget review.

ALTERNATIVES
1. Do not accept the Frei Real Estate Services mid-year budget review

FISCAL IMPACT

None

Attachments :
Frei Real Estate Services Marin Valley Mobile Country Club Mid-Year Budget Review

RANFA - MVMCC 2010\Agendas - Minutes\02-27-2012 City Council Mtg\Final Agenda Packet\6 - Staff
Report_Al Frei Mid-Year Budget Review Acceptance.docx







E-6
1.

FREI REAL ESTATE SERVICES

§340 AUBURN BLVD. « SUITE 100 « CITRUS HEIGHTS, CA 95610 « (916) 722-8110 » FAX (916) 722-8111

DATE: January 13, 2012
TO: City of Novato
Park Acquisition Corporation
FROM:  AlFrei
RE: Marin Valley Mobile Country Club

Mid Year Budget Review - FY 6/30/12
Summary

Our mid-year budgel review ending 12/31/11 shows a total deviation of 9.59% under-budget in
operating costs (middle of page 4).

Significant Budget Deviations

Expenses

v

Garbage — Additional temporary bins were brought in for park clean up/brush
clearing.

(Gas - increase in usage and rates.

Licenses & Permits — The most expensive fee, HCD annual permit ($4,383) has
already been paid.

vV

RECOMMENDATIONS:

OPERATING BUDGET
Because of the under-budget deviation at mid-year, Management recommends no

revision to the operating budget.

CAPITAL PLAN

Major Completed Projects:
Asphalt Overlay
Driveways and Cul de sacs Seal Coat

Retaining Walls
199 Marin Valley Drive 16 View Ridge
43 Scenic Dnive 60 Club View

61 Club View

6 additional to be completed this vear
Seismic Retrofit and Engineering - ready to begin
Engineering Infrastructure Evaluation — in progress
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STAFF REPORT
BE-7

THE CITY OF

NOVATO

CALIFORNIA

MEETING 75 Rowland Way #200

DATE: February 27, 2012 Novato, CA 94945-3232
(415) 899-8900

. . FAX (415) 899-8213
TO: City Council wva.no)vato.org

FROM: Michael Frank, City Manager
Dane M. Wadlé, Management Analyst

SUBJECT: MVMCC: Marin Energy Authority (MEA) Update

REQUEST

Receive update on City participation in Marin Energy Authority (MEA) for Marin Valley Mobile
Country Club and timeline of next actions.

RECOMMENDATION

No recommendation. This item is informational.

DISCUSSION
Last September, the Council voted to become a member of the Marin Energy Authority (MEA).

MEA is a joint-powers authority comprised of Marin County and the eleven cities within the
county with the role of administering the Marin Clean Energy Program. The purpose of the
Marin Energy Authority and the Marin Clean Energy Program is to address climate change by
reducing energy related greenhouse gas emissions and securing energy supply, price stability,
energy cfficiencies and local economic and workforce benefits. It is the intent of MEA to
promote the development and use of a wide range of renewable energy sources and energy
efficiency programs, including but not limited to solar and wind energy production at
competitive rates for customers. MEA provides a green energy alternative to Pacific Gas and

Electric (PG&E).

MEA purchases power from clean, renewable sources and PG&E still delivers it via their
transmission system to the home or business. PG&E also sends the monthly bill and provides
the customer service. PG&E is still responsible for providing maintenance service as needed.

By joining Marin Energy Authority, the City provided Novato residents and businesses with a
choice regarding their electric service as residents — each resident can now choose to receive
their electricity from MEA or stay with the current provider, PG&E. In addition, the City, as a
customer of PG&E for electricity at city owned facilities, has the opportunity to stay with MEA
service or opt-out and remain with PG&E. The opt-out period is from April 1 through May 31,

Novato City Council
Apgenda Staff Report
Date:

File No.

7 - mea update staff report; 2/15/2012




2012. By June 1, 2012, a decision has to be made whether to go with MEA or opt-out and stay
with PG&E.

The situation is different in the MVMCC Park. As MVMCC is on a master meter, one decision
must be made for the park as a whole and each resident does not have the ability to decide
individually. Therefore, the City Council must make a determination on what electric service
provider to use for the Park by June 2012. However, the City Council does have the ability to
consider the electricity service decision for MYMCC separately from any other city accounts.

MEA currently offers two power options to customers:

1. “Light Green.” This product provides electric service of which 50% of the electricity
comes from California-certified, renewable energy sources such as wind, solar and
biomass.

2. “Deep Green.” This product provides electric service of which 100% of the electricity
comes from California-certified, renewable energy sources such as wind, solar and
biomass.

Next Steps
City staff is currently working on a cost analysis in order to provide information on MEA service

for MVMCC as compared to PG&E. The cost analysis will be completed in March or April.
Staff is also talking to MEA about providing a resident workshop, probably in partnership with
the PAC, for further information. All of this information would come to the City Council at their
May MVMCC meeting for a decision regarding MEA.

FISCAL IMPACT
No impact at this time. More information to be provided in the future.

ALTERNATIVES
"None.

ATTACHMENTS
None.
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